
am
e

þì

I

Meeting Location
Sleeping Room

Information

Little America Hotel Flagstaff
2515 E. Butler Avenue

Flagstaff AZ 86004

Little America Hotel Flagstaff
2515 E. Butler Avenue
Flagstaff AZ 86004
Tel: 1-800-352-4386

Rate: $124 + lax (14.27o/o)
Check in time: 4 p m.
Check out time: 12 noon
Cancellation Policy = 48 hours

Glen Canyon
Adaptive MarilrJff;t work Group

Wednesd ay, August 24, 2016
9:30 a.m. - 5:30 p.m.

Thursd ãy, Thursd ay 25, 2016
8:30a.m.- 3p.m.





 
Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Work Group Meeting 

August 24-25, 2016 
 

Meeting Packet Order 
 

Tabs Documents 
  Meeting Information Page 

 Meeting Packet Order  
 Federal Register Notice 
 WebEx Participant Information 

 
 
Agenda  
 

 
 Agenda for August 24-25, 2016, Meeting 

 

Draft Minutes / 
Action Items 

 
 Draft Minutes from May 25, 2016, Meeting 

 
  

Budget  AIF: Fiscal Year (FY17) Budget and Work Plan 
 

  
TWG Report 
 

 AIF: Technical Work Group (TWG) Report: Triennial Budget Process 
Development 

  
Hydrology & 
Hydrograph 
 

 AIF:  Basin Hydrology, Operations, and 2017 Hydrograph 

  

Science Advisors 
 AIF: Science Advisors Charter and Protocols Government to Government 

Consultations Update 
 AIF: Science Advisors Program  ̶2016 Accomplishments and 2017 Plans 

  

Science Updates 
 

 AIF:  Grand Canyon Monitoring and Research Center Science Updates  
 Science behind High Flow Experiment Planning: From Chasing Storms in the 

Paria River to Serving Data on the Web 
 AIF:  Sandbar Modeling Project Update 
 AIF:  Aquatic Foodbase of the Little Colorado River 
 

  
 
Basin Fund 
 

 AIF:  Basin Fund and Revenue Overview 

 
Federal Liaison 
Report 

 AIF:  Federal – Tribal Liaison Report 

  
Stakeholder’s  
Perspective 

 AIF: Stakeholder’s Perspective: The River of Never-Ending Life—Cultural 
Resources from Navajo 

  

LTEMP  AIF: Long-Term Experimental Management Plan (LTEMP) Environmental Impact 
Statement (EIS) Update and Science Plan 

  
 
Miscellaneous 

 AMWG Committee Membership List & AMWG Membership (by entity)  
 Memo from PDAS Jennifer Gimbel to Scott VanderKooi (GCMRC) and Katrina 

Grantz (USBR) dated July 8, 2016, Subject: Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive 
Management Program Continuity and Strategic Director 

 AMWG Ground Rules 
 AMWG Charter  
 AMWG Operating Procedures 





44042 Federal Register/Vol. 81, No. 129lWednesday, July 6, 2016/Notices

authorities. Consistent with Executive
Order 13547, each NOC member will, as
described in the Final
Recommendaúions, and to the fullest
extent consistent with applicable law,
comply with those regional plans
certified bv the NOC.

The Fedäral members of the MidA
RPB administer a wide range of statutes
and programs affecting the marine
environment in the Mid-Atlantic, These
Federal departments and agencies carry
out actions under Federal laws
involving a wide range of regulatory
responsibilities and non-regulatory
missions and management activities
throughout the Nation's waterways and
the ocean, These activities include
managing and developing marine
transportation systems, national security
and homeland defense activities,
regulating ocean discharges, siting
energy facilities, permitting sand
removal and beach re-nourishment,
managing national parks and national
wildlife refuges, regulating commercial
and recreational fishing, and managing
activities affecting threatened and
endangered species and migratory birds.

The specific manner and mechanism
a Federal agency uses to implement the
final Mid-Atlantic Ocean Action Plan
will depend on that agency's mission,
authorities, and activities in tlre marine
environment. The Federal members of
the MidA RPB will publicly describe the
administrative mechanisms they will
use to implement the Plan when the
MidA RPB submits the PIan to tlre NOC
for review and concurrence.

If the NOC concurs (i.e., certifies) that
the Plan is consistent with Executive
Order 13547, the FinaL
Recommendafions, and the Handbook,
each Federal MidA RPB member will
incorporate the final Plan into their
planning processes and internal agency
documents, and use the Plan to guide
and inform their decisions and actions,
consistent with applicable law, Federal
MidA RPB members with regulatory
responsibilities will incorporate the
final PIan into their pre-planning,
planning, and permitting to guide and
inform Federal agency internal and
exte¡nal permitting decisions,
environmental compliance, resource
management plans, and other actions
taken pursuant to existing statutory and
regulatory authorities, These agencies
will ensure their scientists, managers,
decision-makers, and analysts use the
Mid-Atlantic Regional Ocean Action
Plan to guide and inform their actions
to the fullest extent possible under
existing statutory and regulatory
authorities. As noted throughout the
Final Recommendations, the Mid-
Atlantic Ocean Action PIan will not

create new authorities, regulations, or
Federal agency missions. AII Federal
activities will continue to be managed
under existing statutory and regulatory
authorities,

IV. Conclusion
Through Executive Order 13547,

Stewardship of the Ocean, Our Coasts,
and the Great Lakes, President Obama
established a National Ocean Policy to
ensure tle protection, maintenance, and
restoration ofthe health of ocean,
coastal, and G¡eat Lakes ecosystems and
resources; enhance the sustainability of
ocean and coastal economies; preserve
our maritime heritage; support
sustainable uses and access; provide for
adaptive management of ocean and
coastal resources to enhance our
understanding of and capacity to
respond to climate change and ocean
acidification; and coordinate ocean
policy with our national security and
foreign policy interests.

The MidA RPB anticipates the Mid-
Atlantic Regional Ocean Action Plan
will increase the sharing of information
and data across resource managers,
stakeholders, and the public; enhance
decision-making through collaboration
and coordination among Federal, state,
and tribal governments; and provide for
an improved information and data
system that characterizes human
activities and natural resources in Mid-
Atlantic waters from the coast to 200
nautical miles offshore. This
informational overlay, along with tlre
best practices for improved
coordination, will improve the context
for decisions affecting the resources and
coastal and ocean waters of the Mid-
Atlantic region.

Authority: Executive O¡der 13547,
"Stewardship of the Ocean, Our Coasts and
the Great Lakes" (fuly 19, 2010).

Dated: june 22,2076.
Kristen J. Sarri,
Principal Deputy Assistant Secretary Policy,
Management and Budget.

IFR Doc. 2016-15588 Filed 7-5-1ô; 8:4s ml
BILLING CODE 431FMR-P

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

Bureau of Reclamation

[RR04073000, xxxR4081 x3,
RX.0594091 3.7000000I

Notice of Public Meeting for the Glen
Canyon Dam Adaptive Management
Work Group

AGENCY: Bureau of Reclamation,
Interior.
ACTION: Notice,

SUMMARY: The Glen Canyon Dam
Adaptive Management Work Group
(AMWG) makes recommendations to the
Secretary of the Interior concerning
GIen Canyon Dam operations and other
management actions to protect resources
downstream of Glen Canyon Dam,
consistent with the Grand Canyon
Protection Act. The AMWG meets two
to three times a year.
DATES: The meeting will be held on
Wednesday, August 24,2O1,6, hom
approximately 9:30 a.m. to
approximately 5:30 p.m,; and Thursday,
August 25, 20'1,6, from approximately
8:30 a.m. to approximately 3 p.m.
ADDRESSES: The meeting will be held at
the Little America Hotel, 2515 E, Butler
Avenue, Flagstaff, Arizona 86004.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Katrina Grantz, Bureau of Reclamation,
telephone (801) 524-3635; facsimile
(801) 524-3807; email aTkgrantz@
usbr.gov,

SUPPLEMENTARY INFoRMATIoN: The GIen
Canyon Dam Adaptive Management
Program (GCDAMP) was implemented
as a result of the Record of Decision on
the Operation of GIen Canyon Dam
Final Environmental Impact Statement
to comply with consultation
requirements of the Grand Canyon
Protection Act (Pub. L. 1.O2-575) of
1992. The GCDAMP includes a Federal
advisory committee, the AMWG, a
technical work group (TWG), a Grand
Canyon Monitoring and Research
Center, and independent review panels.
The TWG is a subcommittee of the
AMWG and provides technical advice
and recommendations to the AMWG.

Agendo: The primary purpose of the
meeting will be to approve the Fiscal
Year 2O'1.7 Budget and Work Plan, and
to approve the Water Year 2O'J,7

Hydrograph operation for Glen Canyon
Dam. The AMWG will receive updates
on: (t) The Long-Term Experimental
and Management Plan Environmental
Impact Statement, (2) current basin
hydrology, (3) reports from the GIen
Canyon Dam Tribal and Federal
Liaisons, (4) presentation on power
generation in the West, and (5) science
results from Grand Canyon Monitoring
and Research Center staff, The AMWG
will also address other administrative
and resource issues pertaining to the
GCDAMP.

To view a copy of the agenda and
documents related to the above meeting,
please visit Reclamation's Web site at
http : / / vvvvw.u sbr. gov / uc / rm/ amp / amwg/
mtgs/16au924, Time will be allowed at
the meeting for any individual or
organization wishing to make formal
oral comments, To allow for full
consideration of information by the



Federal Register/Vol. 81, No. 129lWednesday, JuIy 6, 201.6/Notices 440'43

AMWG members, written notice must
be provided to Katrina Grantz, Bureau of
Reclamation, Upper Colorado Regional
Office, 125 South State Street, Room
8100, salt Lake city, utah 84138;
telephone (801) 524-3635; facsimile
(801) 524-3807; email alkgrantz@
usbr.gov, at least five (s) days prior to
the meeting. Any written comments
received will be provided to the AMWG
members,

Public Disclosure of Comments

Before including your address, phone
number, email address, or other
personal identifying information in your
comment, you should be aware that
your entire comment-including your
personal identifying information-may
be made publicly available at any time,
While you can ask us in your comment
to withhold your personal identifying
information from public review, we
cannot guarantee that we will be able to
do so.

Dated: June 23,2016.
Katrina Grantz,
Chief, Adoptive Manogement Group,
Environmental Resources Division, Upper
Colorado Regional Office.

IFR Doc. 2O16-15960 Filed 7-5-16; 8:45 amì

BILLING CODE 4SI2-9(FP

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

Office of Surface Mining Reclamation
and Enforcement

ls1 D1S SSo8o1 looo SXo66A0067F
16751 801 10; S2D2D SS0801 1 000 SX066400
33F 16XS5015201

Notice of Proposed lnformation
Collection; Request for Comments for
1029-0030

AcENcY: Office of Surface Mining
Reclamation and Enforcement, Interior.
AcTloN: Notice and request for
comments,

SUMMARY: In compliance with the
Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, the
Office of Surface Mining Reclamation
and Enforcement (OSMRE) is
announcing its intention to request
approval for the collections of
information for State Processes for
Designating Areas Unsuitable for
Surface Coal Mining Operations. The
information collection request describes
the nature of the information collection
and its expected burden and cost.
DATES: Comments on the proposed
information collection must be ¡eceived
by September 6, 2016, to be assured of
consideration.
ADDRESSES: Comments may be mailed to
fohn A. Trelease, Office of Surface

Mining Reclamation and Enforcement,
1951 Constitution Ave, NW., Room
203-SIB, Washington, DC 2O24O.
Comments may also be submitted
electronically lo jtrelease@o smrc. gov.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: To
receive a copy of the information
collection request contact John Trelease,
at (2o2) 2oB-2783 or by email at
jtreleose@osmre.gov.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATIOH: Office of
Management and Budget (OMB)
regulations at 5 CFR part 1320, which
implementing provisions of the
Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995 (Pub.
L. 104-13), require that interested
members of the public and affected
agencies have an opportunity to
comment on information collection and
recordkeeping activities [see 5 CFR
1320.8 (d)1, This notice identifies an
information collection that OSMRE will
be submitting to OMB for extension.
This collection is contained in 30 CFR
part 764.

An agency may not conduct or
sponsor, and a person is not required to
respond to, a collection of information
unless it displays a currently valid OMB
control number. The OMB control
number for this collection of
information is 1029-0030 and is
displayed at 30 CFR 764.LO.

OSMRE has revised burden estimates,
where appropriate, to reflect current
reporting levels or adjustments based on
reestimates of burden or respondents,
OSMRE will request a 3-year term of
approval for these information
collection activities.

Comments are invited on: (t) The
need for the collection of information
for the performance of the functions of
the agency; (2) the accuracy ofthe
agency's burden estimates; (3) ways to
enhance the quality, utility and clarity
of the information collections; and (4)
ways to minimize the information
collection burden on respondents, such
as use of automated means of collection
of the information. A summary of the
public comments will accompany
OSMRE's submission of the information
collection request to OMB.

Before including your address, phone
number, email address, or other
personal identifying information in your
comment, you should be aware that
your entire comment, including your
personal identifying information, may
be made publicly available at any time.
While you can ask us in your comment
to withhold your personal identifying
information from public review, we
cannot guarantee that we will be able to
do so.

This notice provides the public with
60 days in which to comment on the

following information collection
activity:

Title:3O CFR part 764-State
Processes for Designating Areas
Unsuitable for Surface Coal Mining
Operations.

OMB Control Numbe¡; 1 029-0030.
Summary: This part implements the

requirement of section 522 of the
Surface Mining Control and
Reclamation AcTof 1,977 (SMCRA),
Public Law 95-87, which provides
authority for citizens to petition States
to designate lands unsuitable for surface
coal mining operations, or to terminate
such designation. The regulatory
authority uses the information to
identify, Iocate, compare and evaluate
the area requested to be designated as
unsuitable, or terminate the designation,
for surface coal mining operations,

Bureau Form Numberr None.
Frequency of Collection: Once.
Description of Respondents :

Individuals, groups or businesses that
petition the States, and the State
regulatory authorities that must process
the petitions.

Totol Annual Respondents : 4,
Totol Annual Burden Hou¡s; 1,000

hours for individuals or groups, and
4,000 for State regulatory authorities,

Total Annual Non-wage Cosfs: $400
Dated: June 30, 2016.

fohn A, Trelease,
Acting Chief , Division of Regulatory Support.

:i."''ï 
"'"'"i;ï 

iJt"u 
7-5-1 6 ; B : 4 5 aml

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTEBIOR

Office of Surface Mining Reclamation
and Enforcement

[s1 D1 S SSo8o1 1 ooo SX06640067F
1 6751 801 1 0; S2D2D SS0801 1 000 SX066400
33F 16XS501520I

Notice of Proposed lnformation
Collection; Request for Comments for
1029-0049

AGENGYT Office of Surface Mining
Reclamation and Enforcement, Interior.
ACTION: Notice and request for
comments.

SUMMARY: In compliance with the
Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, the
Office of Surface Mining Reclamation
and Enforcement (OSMRE) is
announcing its intention to request
renewed approval for the collection of
information for OSMRE's Special
Permanent Program Performance
Standards-Operations in Alluvial
Valley Floors,
DATES: Comments on the proposed
information collection must be received



WEBEX INFORMATION
August 24-25,2016

Participant lnformation:
bor-
8decfbcfaf9a585a46eebdc86 1 750

877-913-4721 3330168

Participant lnformation :

or-
7 37 636f ccaT 9 8 a 56 54 5 97 d 6 b3 6 5 0

877-913-4721 3330168

,,r'¡ ¡\¡¡f¡¡\ ',1 , rji;1 I ; t1.t





Agenda





Draft r\ugust 8

Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Program
Adaptive Management Work Group Meeting, August 24-251 2016

Little Amenca Flagstaff,2s1,s E. Butler Avenue, Flagstaff, AZ 86004, 800.352-4386

\üednesday, August 24, 201,6
\Webinar Information:

Phone: 877 -91.3-4721 Passcode: 3330768

DRAFT AGEND,4.
STA.RT
TIME 1

puration)

rü(/ednesday, Âugust 24, 201 6

Topic and Ptesentet and Puqpose2

Materialsf
Tabs

9:30
(1:00)

SØelcome and Administrative: Brent Rhees, Regional Director, Bureau of
Reclamation and Sectetary's Desþee's Alternate
r Determination of Quorum (13 members)
I Department of Interior Update
I Approval of ll['/.ay 25,2076 Meeting Minutes

' ,A.ction Item Tracking Report
I Progress on Nominations and Reappointments
I Update: AMWG Charter
¡ Introduction of Seth Shanahan, new TSøG Chair (FY17)

' Inttoductions: group exercise

Agenda

Meeting
Minutes/

Action
Items

10:30
(1:00)

Fy 2017 Budget and Work Plan: I(atrina Grantz, Buteau of Reclamation;
Scott Vanderl(ooi, Grand Canyon Monitoring and Research Centet;
Vineetha Kartha, Technical Work Gtoup (f\X/G) Chatr
I Presentation (30 minutes)

' Q&4, discussion, and action (30 minutes)

AMSøG recommends to the Secretary
of the Interior her approval of the GCDAMP FY17 budget as desc ed in
the two tables (attached to the Agenda Item Fotm) from the Buteau of
Reclamation and the Gtand Canyon Monitoring and Research Center.
,{MSøG also requests G to review the FY17 budget aftet issuance of
the LTEMP ROD, to detetmine if buclget ot wotk plan changes may be
needed as a result of the ROD. AMSøG acknowledges that tribal
tepresentatives will wotk with the Buteau of Reclamation on the
implementation of its budget items D.2.5 through D.2.8.

Budget

71:30
(:45)

Technical Work Group Repot-Triennial Budget Ptocess
Development: Vineeth a Kartha, TWG Chair
r Presentation (15 minutes)
. Q&,\, discussion, and action (30 minutes)

TWG
Repot

12:15

(1:30)
LUNCH

1 lPage



Draft August 8

1 Every cffort will be made to adhere to the schedule and agcnda, but on occasion, for unforeseen reasons, some modiltcations may
occuf.
2Action may be by consensus or a vote; and either may be a recommendation to the Secretary of thc Interior or fcedback to
presenter(s) or to subordi¡ate groups.

START
TIME 1

puration)

Wednesday, .A.ugust 24, 207 6

Topic and Presenter and Purpose2

Matenalsf
Tabs

7:45

(:45)

Basin Hydtology and Water Yeat 2017 Hydtograph: Paul Davidson,
Buteau of Reclamation; Vineetha Kaftha, TWG Chair
r Presentation (30 minutes)

' Q&4, discussion, and action (15 minutes)

Motion Recommended bv the T\X/G: Please see Dase 2 of the Asenda Item
Form.

Basin
Hydrology &
Hydtograph

2:30
(:15)

Science Advisors Charter and Protocols Government-to-Govemment
Consultations Update: I(aftina Grantz, Buteau of Reclamation

I Presentation (10 minutes)

' Q&4, discussion (5 minutes)

Science
Advisots

2:45
(:45)

Scienc e Advis ots P to gtatn-2016 Accomplis hments aîd. 2017 Plans :

David Braun, GCDAMP Science,\dvisors
¡ Ptesentaaon (20 minutes)
I Q&4, discussion (25 minutes)

Science
Advisots

3:30
(:15)

BREAK

3:45
(1:00)

GCMRC Science Updates: Paul Grams and ScottVanderKooi, Gtand
Canyon Monitoring and Reseatch Center
r Presentation (45 minutes)
t Questions, responses, and discussion (15 minutes)

Science
Updates

4:45
(:15)

Public Comment

5:00
ADJOURN FOR THE DAY
Please frll out evaluation fotm if you will not retum tomoffow.

2lPage



Draft August 8

Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Program
Adaptive Management Work Group Meeting, August 24-2512016

Little America Flagstaff,2575 E. Butlet Avenue, Flagstaff, AZ 86004,800.352-4386

Thursday, Âugust 25, 2016
\üebinar Information:

Phone: 87 7 -91.3-4721 Passcod e: 33307 68

DRÂFT AGEND,{
START
TIME 1

(Duration)

Thursday, .A.ugust 25, 2076
Topic, Presenter, and Purpose2

Matenalsf
Tabs

8:30
(:10)

Welcome and Administtative: Btent Rhees, Regional Director, Bureau of
Reclamation and Sectetary's Desþee's Alternate
I Introducdons and Determination of Quorum (13 members)

Agenda

8:40
(:45)

Basin Fund and Revenue Overview: LynnJeka,'Western Area Power
Administration
I Presentation (30 minutes)

' Questions, responses, and discussion (15 minutes)

Basin
Fund

9:25
(:30)

Federal -Tribal Liaison Report: Dr. Sarah Rinkevich, Federal Tribal
Liaison for the Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Progtam
r Presentatton (20 minutes)
. Q&4, discussion (10 minutes)

Federal
Liaison
Repott

9:55
(:15)

BREAK

10:10
(:30)

Stakeholdet's Percpective: The Rivet of Never-Ending Life-Cultural
Resoutces ftom Navaio: Melinda Arviso-Ciocco, AM\ùØG Altemate,
Navajo Nation
r Ptesentztton Q0 minutes)
. Q&4, discussion (10 minutes)

Stakeholdet's
Perspective

1,0:40

(1:00)

GCMRC Science Ptesentations
¡ Sandbar Modeling Project Update: Erich R. Muellet, Research

Hydtologist, U.S. Geological Survey, GCMRC

' -Aquatic Foodbase of the Little Colotado River: Jeff Muehlbauet,
USGS Research Ecologist

r Science behind High Flow Experiment Planning: David Topping,
Reseatch Hydrologist, U.S. Geological Survey, GCMRC
o Ptesentation (15 minutes each)

o Q&4, discussion (5 minutes each)

Science
Updates

3lPage



Dtaft August B

1 Every effort will be made to adhere to the schedule and agenda, but on occasion, for unforeseen reasons, some modifications may
occuf.
2 Action may be by corsensus or â vote; and either may be a recommendation to the Secretary of the Interior or feedback to
presenter(s) or to subordinate groups.

START
TIME 1

@uration)

Thursday, August 25, 2076
Topic, Presentet, and Pu4lose2

Matenalsf
Tabs

71:40

(1:30)
LUNCH

1:10

(1:30)

Long-Term Experimental Management Plan (LTEMP)
Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) Update and Science Plan:
Katina Grantz, Bureau of Reclamation; Rob Billerbeck, National Park
Service; Scott Vanderl(ooi, Grand Canyon Monitoring and Research
r LTEMP EIS update (30 minutes)
I Q&A and discussion (15 minutes)
¡ Science Plan ptesentation (30 minutes)
¡ Q&A and discussion (15 minutes)

LTEMP

2:40
(:10)

Public Comment

2:50

(:10)

Wtap-up: Btent Rhees, Regional Dfuectot, Buteau of Reclamation and
Secretary's Desþee's Altemate
I Please fill out the meeting evaluation sheet at your place.
r Next AMSøG meeting dates:

o February 75-1.6,2017 (NOTE: THIS IS A CI{ANGE)
o May 24,2077 (webnar)
o A.ugust 30-31,201,7

3:00 ADJOURN

4lPage



Dra¡t Minutes/
Act¡on ltems





Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Work Group Meeting
May 25,2016

Summarv of Actions Taken
The AMWG reached con us on the following actions during this meeting:

. AMWG approves the minutes of February 24-25,2016, meeting.

May 25,2016 Start Time: 9 a.m. (MDT)
Conducting: Jennifer Gimbel, DOl, Principal Deputy Assistant Secretary for Water and Science
Facilitator: Mary Orton, The Mary Orton Company, LLC

USGS/Grand Canyon Monitoring and Research Center
Helen Fairley, Program Manager Scott VanderKooi, Chief, GCMRC

Gomm ittee Members/Alternates :

Melinda Arviso-Ciocco, Navajo Nation
Jan Balsom, NationalPark Service (GRCA)
Eric Bobelu, Pueblo of Zuni
Chris Cantrell, Arizona Game & Fish Department
Kerry Christensen, Hualapai Tribe
Kevin Dahl, National Parks Conservation Assoc.
Jayne Harkins, State of Nevada
Chris Harris, State of California
Leslie James, CREDA
Committee Members Absent:
Charley Bulletts, Southern Paiute Consortium
Tom Buschatzke, State of Arizona
James deVos, Arizona Game and Fish Department
Deborah Dixon, State of New Mexico
Dawn Hubbs, Hualapai Tribe
Leigh Kuwanwisiwma, Hopi Tribe
Ora Marek-Marlinez, Navajo Nation

lnterested Persons, TWG Members, and Alternates
Steven Anderson, U.S. Geological Survey
Adam Arellano, WAPA
Tara Ashby, U.S. Bureau of Reclamation
Rob Billerbeck, National Park Service
David Braun, Sound Science LLC
Dan Bunk, U.S. Bureau of Reclamation
Kathleen Callister, U.S. Bureau of Reclamation
Shane Capron, WAPA/TWG Vice Chair r

Bill Chada, U.S. Bureau of Reclamation
Rick Clayton, U.S. Bureau of Reclamation
Marianne Crawford, U.S. Bureau of Reclamation
Winkie Crook, Hualapai Tribe
Paul Davidson, U.S. Bureau of Reclamation
Kurt Dongoske, Pueblo of Zuni
Craig Ellsworth, WAPA
Katrina Granlz, U.S. Bureau of Reclamation
Jessica Gwinn, U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service
John Hamill, lnt'l Federation of Fly Fishers & TU
Paul Harms, State of New Mexico
Jeffrey lnwood, Arizona Dept. of Water Resources
Lisa Meyer, WAPA

Sam Jansen, Grand Canyon River Guides
Lynn Jeka, Western Area PowerAdministration
John Jordan, lnt'l Federation of Fly Fishers & TU
Vineetha Kartha, State of Arizona
Daniel Picard, U.S. Bureau of Reclamation
Steve Spangle, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
Larry Stevens, Grand Canyon Wildlands Council
Steve Wolff, State of \Â/yoming

John McClow, State of Colorado
Eric Millis, State of Utah
David Nimkin, National Parks Conservation Assoc.
Don Ostler, State of \Âfoming
Ted Rampton, UAMPS
Tanya Trujillo, State of California
VACANT, San Juan Southern Paiute Tribe

Jill Nagode, U.S. Bureau of Reclamation
Jessica Neuwerth, State of California
Brent Rhees, U.S. Bureau of Reclamation
Sarah Rinkevich, DOI FederalTribal Liaison
Peggy Roefer, State of Nevada (CRC)
Monica Richards, Tri-State
Marty Rozelle, The Mary Orton Company, LLC
Kendra Russell, U.S. Bureau of Reclamation
Sarah Ryker, DOlM/ater and Science
Brian Sad ler, Western Area Power Adm inistration
Randy Seaholm, State of Colorado
Seth Shanahan, State of Nevada (SNWA)
Angela Slaughter, State of Nevada (CRC)
Rodney Smith, DOl/Solicitor's Office
Rosemary Sucec, NPS (GLCA)
Justin Tade, DOI/Solicitor's Office
Shana Tighi, U.S. Bureau of Reclamation
Jason Tucker, U.S. Bureau of Reclamation
Warren Turkett, State of Nevada (CRC)
Kathy Tyer (WAPA)



Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Work Group
Oraft Minutes of May 25, 2016, MeetinB Page 2

Recorder: Linda Whetton, Reclamation

Welcome and Administrative. Ms. Gimbel, Secretary's Designee, welcomed the members and general
public.
. lntroductions were made and a quorum was determined to be present.
. Approvalof February 24-25,2016, Meeting Minutes. Motion proposed by Mr. Wolff, seconded by Mr. Harris.

The minutes were approved by consensus.
. Action ltem Tracking Report (Attachmentl).
. Update on Recruitments: GCMRC Deputy Chief - Mr. VanderKooi. The position will be re-advertized in early

June.
. LTEMP Update - Ms. Grantz. The Draft EIS was published on January 8 and the public period comment closed

on May 9. Approximately 3,000 comments were received and most were generally supportive of the Preferred
Alternative but some with caveats related to the Low Summer Steady Flows experiment and potential impacts
to hydropower. The goal is to have a Final EIS by August 30 and a Record of Decision by September 30.

. Progress on Nominations and Reappointments: Mr. Uberuaga will retire at the end of the month; his alternate
Ms. Jan Balsom has stepped in. Mr. Kowalski (alternate) terminated from the State of Colorado. Ms. Jessica
Gwinn was appointed the TWG alternate for USFWS and Mr. Jeffrey lnwood as the TWG alternate for the State
of Arizona on a temporary basis.

Basin Hvdroloqv and VVY 2017 Hvdroqraph (Attachment 2) - Mr. Davidson. Basin snowpack peaked
at94% on April 2nd 2016. The current forecast for April to July most probable unregulated inflow is 5.5
maf (77o/o). The forecast ranges from a minimum probable of 3.85 maf (54%) and maximum probable of
7.65 maf (107%). The water year 2016 operating tier for Lake Powell was set in August 2015 as the
upper elevation balancing tier. Lake Powell is currently projected to release 9.0 maf. ln water yeat 2016,
Reclamation is using the approved 2016 hydrograph.

GCD Maintenance Schedule. For 2016, five to seven units are expected to be available at any time and
Reclamation anticipates having enough capac¡ty to meet the scheduled releases for 2016. For 2017, one
unit is anticipated to be down for maintencance with seven units available for a potential November 2016
HFE.

WY2017 Proposed Hvdroqraph. The proposed water yeat 2017 hydrograph is the same as the approved
water year 2016 hydrograph which targets lower August and September release, reallocating water from
those months to other equal value months for hydropower, mainly December and January, and avoids
shifting water to June. The 2017 projected annual releases are: minimum probable a|8.23 maf, most
probable at 9.0 maf, and maximum probable at 1 1.91 maf. The current water year 2017 hydrograph
proposal is:

Annual Release Volume June August September
Less than 9.0 maf 600 kaf- 550 kaf 800 kaf 600 kaf

9.0 maf - less than 9.5 maf 800 kaf 900 kaf 700 kaf
9.5 maf - less than 10 maf 900 kaf 900 kaf 700 kaf
L0 maf and greater 900 kaf or more 900 kaf or more 800 kaf or more

(Attachmenú 3) - Ms. Jill Nagode. As follow-up to the AMP Assessment Report presented at the last
meeting, Ms. Nagode presented an overview of the Federal Advisory Committee Act (FACA) of 1972,
focusing on how the statute requires that Federal advisory committees such as the AMWG be organized,
and the committees' role, purview, and processes. The Department of the lnterior has 1 12 Federal
advisory committees including the AMWG, which was established in 1997 and is renewed every two
years.

Ms. Nagode also explained Departmental roles and contacts for FACA processes. The Department's
Committee Management Officer, Margaret Triebsch, coordinates with GSA and general counsel. Ms.
Nagode serves as BOR's Federal Group Officer and is responsible for working between allthe
committtes. She coordinates closely on nominating AMWG members and alternates and updating



Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Work Group
Draft Minutes of May 25, 2016, Meeting Page 3

members' resumes. The Designated Federal Official (Jennifer Gimbel) works closely with the Secretary's
Designee (also Jennifer Gimbel), who makes recommendations to the Secretary of the lnterior.

Law of the River (Attachment 4) - Mr. Rod Smith. As follow-up to the AMP Assessment Report
presented at the last meeting, Mr. Smith presented an overview of the Law of the River including the
1922 Colorado River Compact and interactions with water use, moving water in the Upper and Lower
Basins and Mexico, tribalwater rights, and Glen Canyon Dam operations.

Mr. Smith gave an overview of the Long-Range Operating Criteria (LROC) and related criteria for moving
water between Lake Powelland Lake Mead. He also touched on the 2007 lnterim Guidelines, the CRSP
Act of 1956, and the Grand Canyon Protection Act of 1992.

(Attachmenf 5) - Dr.
David Braun. The executive coordinator of the Science Advisor Program is establishing a work plan to
guide future efforts. A proposed activity for FY2017 is an external review panel to look at best practices
for incorporating Native American traditional knowledge into the AMP.
Comments:
. The Hualapai Tribe will be requesting formal government-to-government consulation on the makeup of the

pane on incorporating traditional knowledges. ln a conversation with Charley Bulletts (Southern Paiute
Consoftium), Ms. Rinkevich said they also desire govt-to-govt consultation with Reclamation.

. The Pueblo of Zuni will also submit a request for govt-to-govt consultation. Reclamation requested the request
in writing. The Depaftment appreciates the oppoftunity to talk with the tribes.

Ms. Gimbel suggested the tribes edit the Charter to include words that would meet their needs.

FY 2017 Budqet and Work Plan - Mr. Capron. He noted the budget process table previously approved
is being updated again. Following the April TWG meeting, input was sought from other ad hoc groups
and will be discussed on a future BAHG call. The BAHG will develop a recommendation for the TWG that
they'll consider in June and the TWG will make a recommendation to the AMWG at its August meeting.

Bureau of Reclamation FY17 Budoet (Attachment 6a) - Ms. Katrina Grantz. ln the FY15 budget,
Reclamation prepared the budget using a 3% CPI rate. The CPI for 2015 came in at 1 .7o/o rate so there
was a reduction between what was originally planned for and the final amount. The FY16 was prepared
using a 3o/o CPI rate but will probably end up around 0%. Based on internal discussions, future budgets
will be prepared using 0% to allow for additional funds if the CPI rate comes in higher.

GCMRC FY2017 Proposed Budqet (Attachment 6b) - Mr. Scott VanderKooi. The FY17 budget is
proposed to be $9,286,900 with $186,000 from other Reclamation funding. Their overhead rates were
projected to go up in anticipation of GCMRC moving into a new facility. Construction on the new facility
should start in 2017 with occupancy in 2018. Recognizing there were shortfalls in the FY16 and FY17
budgets, they made the decision to budget in a shortfall. With the delay in the building of the new facility,
the overhead rates have declined which help make up for the shortfall.

AMWG Next Steps - Ms. Jennifer Gimbel thanked everyone for their participation. Upcoming items for
the AMWG August meeting will include approval of: 1) the FY17 Budget and Workplan, 2) Water Year
2017 Hydrograph, and 3) Science Advisor Charter, Protocols and 2017 Work Plan. Additional agenda
items need to be sent to Linda Whetton by June 1.

Since the AMWG August meeting will be held in August in Flagstaff, GCMRC will be hosting a river style
cookout at their boathouse on Wednesday, August 24. More details to follow.

Public Gomment: None

Adjourned: 11:41 a.m.

Remaininq 201 6 Meetinqs:



Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Work Group
Draft Minutes of May 25, 2O16, Meet¡ng

o June 14-15,2016 - TWG MeetingMebEx in Salt Lake City UT
. Aug 24-25,2016 - AMWG meeting in Flagstaff, Arizona

AMWG Meetinqs in 2017:
. February 15-16,2017 (Phoenix, AZ)
. May 24,2017 (webinar)
. August 30-31, 2017 (Flags|aff , AZ)

Respectfully submitted,

Linda Whetton
Bureau of Reclamation
Upper Colorado Region

Page 4



Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Work Group
Draft Minutes of May 25, 2016, Meeting

ADWR - Arizona Dept. of Water Resources
AF - Acre Feet
AGFD - Arizona Game and Fish Department
AIF - Agenda lnformation Form
AMP - Adaptive Management Program
AMWG - Adaptive Management Work Group
AOP - Annual Operating Plan
ASMR - Age-Structure Mark Recapture
BA - Biological Assessment
BAHG - BudgetAd Hoc Group
BCOM - Biological Conservation Measure
BE - Biological Evaluation
BHBF - Beach/Habitat-Building Flow
BHMF - Beach/Habitat Maintenance Flow
BIA - Bureau of lndian Affairs
BO - Biological Opinion
BOR - Bureau of Reclamation
BWP - Budget and Work Plan
CAHG - Charter Ad Hoc Group
CAP - Central Arizona Project
GCT - Grand Canyon Trust
CESU - Cooperative Ecosystems Studies Unit
cfs - cubic feet per second
CFMP - Comprehensive Fisheries Management Plan
CMINS - Core Monitoring lnformation Needs
CMP - Core Monitoring Plan
CPI - Consumer Price lndex
CRBC - Colorado River Board of California
CRAHG - Cultural Resources Ad Hoc Group
CRCN - Colorado River Commission of Nevada
CRE - Colorado River Ecosystem
CREDA - Colorado River Energy Distributors Assn.
CRSP - Colorado River Storage Project
CWCB - Colorado Water Conservation Board
DAHG - Desired Future Gonditions Ad Hoc Group
DASA - Data Acquisition, Storage, and Analysis
DBMS - Data Base Management System
DOE - Department of Energy
DOI - Department of the lnterior
DOIFF - Department of the lnterior Federal Family
EA - Environmental Assessment
EIS - Environmental lmpact Statement
ESA - Endangered Species Act
FACA - Federal Advisory Committee Act
FEIS - Final Environmental lmpact Statement
FRN - Federal Register Notice
FWS - United States Fish & Wildlife Service
FY - Fiscal Year (October 1 - September 30)
GCD - Glen Canyon Dam
GCES - Glen Canyon Environmental Studies
GCT - Grand Canyon Trust
GCMRC - Grand Canyon Monitoring & Research Center
GCNP - Grand Canyon National Park
GCNRA - Glen Canyon Nat'l Recreation Area
GCPA - Grand Canyon Protection Act
GLCA - Glen Canyon Nat'l Recreation Area
GRCA - Grand Canyon National Park
GCRG - Grand Canyon River Guides
GCWC - Grand Canyon Wildlands Council
HBC - Humpback Chub (endangered native fish)
HFE - High Flow Experiment

Page 5

HMF - Habitat Maintenance Flow
HPP - Historic Preservation Plan
lG - lnterim Guidelines
lNs - lnformation Needs
1(A - Knowledge Assessment (workshop)
KAS - Kanab Ambersnail (endangered native snail)
LCR - Little Colorado River
LCRMCP - Lower Colorado River Multi-Species
Conservation

Program
LTEMP - Long-Term Experimental and Management Plan
LTEP - Long Term Experimental Plan
MAF - Million Acre Feet
MA - Management Action
MATA - Multi-Attribute Trade-Off Analysis
MLFF - Modified Low Fluctuating Flow
MO - Management Objective
MRP - Monitoring and Research Plan
NAU - Northern Arizona University (Flagstaff, AZ)
NEPA - National Environmental Policy Act
NHPA - National Historic Preservation Act
NNFC - Non-native Fish Control
NOI - Notice of lntent
NPCA - National Parks Conservation Association
NPS - National Park Service
NRC - National Research Council
O&M - Operations & Maintenance (Reclamation Funding)
PA - Programmatic Agreement
PBR - Paria to Badger Creek Reach
PEP - Protocol Evaluation Panel
POAHG - Public Outreach Ad Hoc Group
Powerplant Capacity = 31,000 cfs
R&D - Research and Development
RBT - Rainbow Trout
RFP - Request for Proposal
RlNs - Research lnformation Needs
ROD Flows - Record of Decision Flows
RPA - Reasonable and Prudent Alternative
SA - Science Advisors
Secretary - Secretary of the lnterior
SCORE - State of the Colorado River Ecosystem
SHPO - State Historic Preservation Office
SOW- Statement of Work
SPAHG - Strategic Plan Ad Hoc Group
SPG - Science Planning Group
SSQs - Strategic Science Questions
SWCA - Steven W. Carothers Associates
TCD - Temperature Control Device
TCP - Traditional Cultural Property
TEK - Traditional Ecological Knowledge
TES - Threatened and Endangered Species
TMC - Taxa of Management Concern
TMF - Trout Management Flows
TWG - Technical Work Group
UCRC - Upper Colorado River Commission
UDWR - Utah Division of Water Resources
USBR - United States Bureau of Reclamation
USFWS - United States Fish & Wildlife Service
USGS - United States Geological Survey
WAPA - Western Area Power Administration
\MY - Water Year

Key to Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Program Acronyms

(Updated: 1112812014)





AMWG Action Item Tracking Report  
Questions or Updates? Contact The Mary Orton Company, LLC at mary@maryorton.com 

GLEN CANYON DAM ADAPTIVE MANAGEMENT WORK GROUP 
ACTION ITEM TRACKING REPORT 

Updated:  May 29, 2016 
 

Note: Items marked “Closed” will be removed from the next iteration of the report. 
 

ITEM 
NO. / 
DATE 

ACTION ITEM 
ASSIGNED 
TO / DUE 

DATE 
STATUS 

It
em

 2
00

6.
D

ec
.0

2 Secretary’s Designee Limbaugh directed the Roles AHG to 
address Dr. Garrett's recommendations: 
1. Develop improved methods and/or procedures for managers 
to establish and articulate priorities for specific 3-5 year time 
intervals.  
2. Develop improved methods for managers and scientists to 
permit effective tradeoff assessments.  
3. Develop more effective scientist/managers collaborative 
working procedures.  
4. Implement methods to monitor and improve the adaptive 
management process.  
5. Implement methods to define future conditions for the CRE 
resources of concern.   
2/19/14 Update: This will remain open as some items may 
evolve as the LTEMP EIS nears completion and have a better 
idea of where the science priorities are going as a result of the new 
long-term plan. 

Roles Ad 
Hoc 

Group 
Open 

It
em

 2
01

2.
A

ug
.0

1 Glen Knowles will work with Anne Castle to compare the 2004 
AMWG/TWG priorities and the Secretary’s Designee’s priorities 
as established in 2011. The Secretary’s Designee will report to 
AMWG on the results of this comparison. 
2/19/14 Update:  The science plan for the LTEMP EIS will 
establish the science priorities looking forward and is an 
independent process from the AMWG. Upon completion of the 
LTEMP, the AMWG would reconsider science priorities to 
integrate with the LTEMP and a possible referral to the TWG. 

G. Knowles 
A. Castle Open 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





Budset





Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Work Group
Agenda Item Form
August 24-25,2016

Aoenda Item

-

Fiscal Year (FY) 2017 Budget and Wotk Plan

Puroose of Asenda Item

To send a recofiunendation to the Secretary of the Interior regarding the trY 201,7 Glen Canyon
Dam Adaptive Management Progtam (GCD,{.MP) budget and wotk plan.

Action Reouested

-

Motion requested. The following ptoposed motion is based on the recommendation ftom the
Technical Work Group (TWG). Flowever, no motion is presumed to be made unless and until an
AMWG member makes the motion in accotdance with the AMSØG Opetating Procedures.

AMSøG tecommends to the Secretary of the Interiot het apptoval of the GCDAMP FY 201.7

budget as described in the two tables (attached) from the Bureau of Reclamation and the Grand
Canyon Monitoring and Research Center. AMWG also requests TWG to further review the FY
2017 budget afrcr issuance of the Long-Tetm Experimental and Management Plan Record of
Decision (ROD); to determine if budget andf or wotk plan changes may be needed as a result of
the ROD. AMWG acknowledges that tribal teptesentatives will work with the Bureau of
Reclamation on the implementation of its budget items D.2.5 through D.2.8.

Ptesenters

Katrina Grantz,Adaptive Management Group Chief, Bureau of Reclamation, Upper Colorado
Region

Vineetha Kartha,AMSØG alternate from Adzona and TWG Chair
Scott Vanderl(ooi, Chief, Grand Canyon Monitoring and Research Center (GCMRC)

Previous Action Taken

/ June l4r 2016 - TfØG passed the following motion by consensus:
TWG tecommends that the AMVøG tecommend to the Secretary of the Intedor her approval of
the GCDAMP FY 2077 budget as described in the two tables (attached) from the Bureau of
Reclamation and the Grand Canyon Monitoring and Reseatch Center. TWG further requests
that AMWG give TWG the opportunity to further review the FY 2017 budget after issuance of
the LTEMP ROD, to determine if budget andf or work plan changes may be needed as a result
of the ROD. Further, tribal representadves will work with the Bureau of Reclamation on the
implementation of its budget items D.2.5 through D.2.8.

'/ Septembet 29r2074 - SecretaryJewell approved the FY 201.5-17 Triennial Budget and Work
Plan.

'/ August 28r2014 -AM\)øG Motion: AMWG tecommends the FY 2015-1,7 Triennial Budget and
'Wotk Plan from the Bureau of Reclamation and the Gtand Canyon Monitoring and Research

Page 1



FY 2077 Budget and Work Plan, continued

Center, as ptesented to the AMWG at their meeting August 27 -28,201,4, to the Secretary of the
Interior for approval. Motion passed by consensus.

Relevant Science and Background Informauon
. Final FY 2075-77 Budget and Wotk Plan (approved by the AMWG on August 28,20'1,4):

http : / /www. usbr. gov/ u c / rm / amp / amwg/ mtgs / MaW?7 / Attach-0 6 f.pdf
¡ Report and Recommendations Memo from Secretary's Designee Anne Castle to DOI Secretary

SallyJewell (dated Sept. 29, 201.4):

htç://www.usbr.gov/u c/ rm/ amp /amwg/mtgs / 14aug27 / Attach-l 1.pdf

Summarv of Presentation and Backoround Informalon
Níhile the GCDAMP FY 2015-17 Tnennid, Budget and Work Plan (TWP) was recommended by the
AM'ùØG and approved by the Secretary in2014, the AMWG is still required to ptovide a

recommendation on a budget to the Secretary of the Interior every ye t to be consistent with the
Federal budget process and the apptoved GCDAMP budget Process (2010).

The T\ØG Budget Ad Hoc Group (BAHG) is tasked to initiate this activity and to make a

recommendation to the full TWG. The BAHG, chaited by Shane Capton, requested input on the
FY 2017 budget from the full TWG. Those items v¡ere discussed at two conference calls. The
BA.HG report (consisting of notes from the two calls) desctibes the details of each coÍunent or
issue as well as the resolution of that issue. The BAHG was able to tesolve all issues, except for a

few that needed furthet discussion ot that involved use of the bypass tubes at Glen Canyon Dam.
The latter was seen as out of the scope for the trY 2017 budget discussion and was moved to
Rcclamation for thcir considctation and input to TSTG at its October meeting.

OnJune 1,4,2076 the full TWG consideted the tecommendation ftom the BAHG and agreed to
recommend the FY 2017 budget to AMWG as it was presented by Reclamation and GCMRC.

The only changes to the budget for FY 2077 fron;' that which was apptovedin2O'1.4 involve
Consumer Pdce Index (CPI), which allows the GCDAMP budget to inctease with inflation, and
overhead rates.

The budget was originally developed with a projected CPI of 3.0o/o. In October 2014, CPI was
zcínhzed at L.70/o. The original estimate of the FY 201.5 budget at projected CPI of 3.0o/o of
ff1,0,892,444 was reduced to the actual CPI of 7.7o/o,fi'1.0,754,967. In Octobet 2015, CPI was

acínltzed at 0o/o. The original estimate of the FY 2076 budget at projected CPI of 3.0o/o of
fi1,1,,21,9,277 has been reduced to the actual CPI of 0%,fi1.0,754,967. To take a conservadve
approach to funding in FY 2017, Reclamadon and GCMRC are projecting a CPI of 0o/o. This results

in a projected budget of $10,754,967 versus the original estimate of $11,555,794 at a CPI of 3o/o.

USGS overhead rates fot FY 2015,201,6, and 2017 have been tevised downward, due to lower than
anticipated lease costs. GSA, on behalf of USGS, has renegodated lease rates with the City of
Flagstaff fot current facilities until the new USGS building is constructed and occupied. The FY
201,5 and2016 rates decreased from the initial estimates of 15.6% and21.3o/o to apptoximately
13.6% and 77.9o/o. The FY 2017 rz;te was estimated to be 27.4o/o, but is now projected to be about

Page 2



trY 2017 Budget and \üØork Plan, continued

72o/o. Reclamation and GCMRC will discuss the effects of changes in the CPI and USGS overhead
rates on the budget, as well as any othet potential changes for trY 201,7 .

Reclamation - Adaptive Management Protram Budget Summary

A $ 3

A.I AhfWG Reclarnation PerEonnel Costs {l-abor & Burden} $ 194,O00

4.2 AfulWG Mernber Travel Reirnbursement s 15,000

4.3 AhIWG Reclarnation Travel $ 16,000

A.¿t AMWG Faci litalion Contract s 79,

4.5 Fuhlic Outreach {POAHG Expenses - Labor, Bu¡'den &Trar¡el'! s 62,tOO

¡q.6 AM Other $ 9,

B lVorHmGroup I
8.r TWG Reclamataon Personnel Costs ILabor & Eurdenï s 96.

ts"2 TIVG Merfl ber Travel Reimbursement $ 23,OOO

8.3 TWG Reclamation Travel s 16,000

8.4 TWG Chair Reinnbursementy'Facílitation s 32,000

8.5 TWG Other s 2,000

c ion Administr¡tion $ tE3,
E.T Ad ffì ¡ n ¡stratave Su p port f or f',1 FS Pe rrn itt¡ ng s r.34'000

c"2 Contract Admír¡istration $ ¿15,

c"3 ScÈence Advisor Contract lFYL6 contraçt incå¡rdes canryoven from FY.!.51r $ 74,000

E.dl Expenírnental Carryover Funds $ 530,û00

c.5 ånstallation of Acoustic Flow [rleters $

c.6 Nalivc Fish Conservation Continqency Fund Balancc $ r,sgç,
D Cultu¡el urces $ 751,

D.1 Cultural Resources ProEram Managernent s r33.t00
0.2 Cuñtural ßesources Work Plan s 460.t00

.ß. J, J, !ont1-te'¡nl 
'rì''4o¡l,ifo,',i¡rq 

F,gErt onl ,f o¡ Te',''resfr-inl nnrl 5,trrbtlre¡ $¿'ri' ¿',8 I Lli L.rt-rLlc

[. J'. J 1¿,,ni,4s,¡ocinfi,øe [.'aJl¡/€'s {Ft"]6 co¡rffûcf inrl¡6'e:r rfi','rú';,e','lr û¡ì1 ,FT¡-X5l

S. i, -ì F",'no's tû i"rpÐor t L,'5 i ¡i Ltstr

,t¡, 3, "i I5K ErD,rr-rg,irr¡l ,Ees foro tian Ptrl¡ect i':, i.lr.rü

tr,.3, -5 T¡-rr[r[Tl SI,'nf hel¿s jil, t'ililt:

D.f.,5 ¡1nn¿¡¡rl ,tnfeqrufeo fift,€f L'¿.pr l ¡ L-xr,hn,.rrle cf l'nii¡È s r¡,'rç' ü,1,'ûr'lñ- f''ie i,us .j:ì'Ll:rr,.i

t. 2, I ür o,'l ¡l D ¡tve,trrsh,Çe¡¡l or,"oi Co¡r rLr rif e ú¡iL1¡ì

tl.!',,9 f,,'ibr.rl Preporrrf¡¡'Jn of PnËreril'r¡rk-fott SúEqf 6¡ç¡ìrJ Cfi,rìI,s,'ì fo ,r,J,Q

D.3 ånteer,ated Tribal Resources M onitoranE t60,000$

D.4 Tribal Partici funon in the GCDAMP 5 tribes at s 475,000

20't7

[assumes ]l% CPll

Reclamation Power Revenue Costs - Total
Reclamation Power Revenue Costs - w/o carryover

s

$

3,675,fÌ00

2,080,000

Reclamation Pregram Costs - Total (includes appropriated funding) S

ReclamatÍon Program Costs - w/o carryover (inoludes appropriated fundin¡ $
4,1$o,ooo

2,555,O00

Page 3



FY 2017 Budget and Wotk Plan, continued

Grand Ganyon Monitoring and Research Genter
FY 2017 Bud

FY 2017 Budget
(Amounts rounded to nearest $1,000)

Project
Numbet

Project Title
FY 2077

Requirements
(with revised overhead)

2 Stream Flow, Water Quality, and Sediment Transport $1,412,000
J Sandbars and Sediment Storage Dynamics $1,325,000
4 Connectivity Along the Fluvial-Aeolian-Hillslope Continuum $530,000
5 Food Base Monitoring and Research $528,000
6 Mainstem Colotado River Humpback Chub Aggregations

and Fish Community Dynamics
$688,000

7 Humpback Chub in and around the Little Colotado River $1.254.000
$278,000B Expedmental Actions to Increase Abundance and

Distribution of Native Fishes

9 Rainbow Trout in Glen and Marble Canyons $s36.000
10 Mapping and Assessment of Aquatic Habitats below Glen

Canyon Dam
$117,000

$460.0001.1 Riparian Vegetation Studies
12 Dam-Related Effects on the Distributìon and Abundance of

Selected Cultutally-Important Plants
$

13 Socio-economic Monitoring and Research $335,000
1,4 Geoqtaphic Information Systems, Services, and Suppott fi224,000
15 Administration and Suppott $1,373,000

'l'otal $9,060,000

FY2077 Projects @100%
(wtth 72% overhead*) $9,060,000

Fisheries Monitoring:

Juvenile Chub Monitoring
0CM/Lees Ferrv

$246,000

Total FY 2017 Costs $e,306,000

FY 2017 AMP
Fundinq (Ò,0% CPI $8,672,000

FY 2077 Cultural
Funding $173,000

TotalFY 2077

Funding $8,945,000

Projected FY 2077
Long/(Short)

$8,845,000 minus

$9,306,000 =
($461,000)x

Projected trY 201.5-1.6

Carryovet Funding $652,000*

Projected FY 201.5-77

Long/Short $191,000x

Page 4

*Preliminary & subject to change



TWG Report





Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Work Group
Agenda Item Form
August 24-25,2016

Agenda Item

Technical lØork Group CflVG) Report Triennial Budget Process Development

Purpose of Agenda Item

To provide an update to AMWG members on the development of the Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive
Management Program (GCDAMP) Triennial Budget Process guidance document.

Action Requested

Information item only; we will answer questions but no action is requested.

Presenter

Vineetha Kartha,AMWG alternate from Arizona and TWG Chair

Ptevious Action Taken
I AMWG approved the GCDAMP Biennial Budget Process on May 6,2010: Attach 02b
I Memo from,A.nne Castle directing TWG and AMWG to update the 2010 GCDAMP Biennial

Budget Process to a triennial budget process, dated May 77,2074 and is attached:
h ftD : / /www.usbr. govluc / rtn / amo / amwo/mtos / I 4mw27 / Attach 02b.odf

Relevant Science

N/A

Summary of Ptesentation

In May 2014, the Secretary's Designee directed GCMRC and Reclamation to cre te a three-year budget
and work plan for the GCDAMP for trY15-17, and to work with the AMWG and TSØG to create a new
process for development of future three-year budget and work plans. ì?.hile the GCDAMP trY15-17
Triennial Budget and \ù7ork Plan (IWP) was completed and approved by the Secretary, the three-year
budget process guidance is still in development. As a part of approving the three-year budget process, the
T!ØG at its June 15ú meeting discussed the budget process. This presentation will oudine the budget
process and the TWG discussion on the budget process.

Bacþround
h 2004,4MSøG approved 

^ 
ßr'ro-ye r rolling budget process that helped to provide structure for budget

development (see the attached 2010 budget process for details). Flowever, it was a very complicated
process that was never fully implemented, and on May 6,201.0, the AMWG directed TWG to develop a
non-rolling two-year budget process and to implement that during ¡he 201.0-201.1 fiscal yeats.

The goal was to teduce the effott expended on budget development while improving the effectiveness of
the Grand Canyon Monitoring and Research Center (GCMRC), TlØG, and AM!7G. Under the201.0
guidance, the GCDAMP would develop 

^ 
ß\ro-ye r budget the ftst year of the process. Then, in the

Page 1



TWG Repott: Triennial Budget Process Development, continued

second year the GCDAMP would revisit only year two of the budget and make relatively minor
corrections to allow for changes in projects or potential important new starts not envisioned during the
development of the two-year budget. The benefit was that substantial effort was saved in year two of the
budget process allowing for time and effort to be used on other endeavors of intetest to the GCDAMP.
The major components of the process included:

o Two-year budget spreadsheets, work plans, and hydrographs.
o Modifications of the year two budget based on specific criteria.
o Fiscal reporting, including expenditures for the previous fiscal year (mid-yeat and end end-of

year reports).
¡ Project progress reports, including an a¡rlual reporting meeting rnJanuary.
o Utilization of the TWG Budget Ad Hoc Group @AHG) to interface with the Bureau of

Reclamation (Reclamation) and GCMRC in developinga draft biennial work plan and
hydrograph, and to help the TWG develop budget recommendations for AMWG consideration.

\X/hile moving ftom a single yeat budget to a biennial budget was a big step forward, many Depattment
of Interior representatives and GCD,A.MP stakeholders felt that there remained room for improvement.
In an effort to improve the efficiency of the GCDAMP and to target limited resources to the highest
priorities, it was decided that the GCDA,MP needed a budget and wotkplan that would be even more
flexible and resilient. Ineffìciencies in the biennial process were discussed at the February 2014 AM\üøG
meeting, as follows. The budget is adopted on a fiscal yeat basis, meaning that it starts on October 1.

The frst year's fìeldwotk typically begins the following suÍüner, and the second fiscal year of the
biennial budget begins before the first field season has ended. The biennial process called for the
program to begin development of the next biennial work plan during the earþ part of the second fiscal
year, but arlhat point, the results of the fust year's data collection efforts are only just becoming
available and have not been subject to much inte¡pretation. As structured in the biennial process, the
development of a two-yeat work plan and budget wâs not well infotmed by the most recent science

because of the ovedap between the timing of field wotk, the time it takes to process and analyze datø.,

and the time frames of fiscal years and the budget development process.

As a result, the Secretary's Designee in a May 2014 rnerno directed GCMRC and Reclamation to cre te 
^three-year budget and work plan for the GCDAMP fot FY 2015-77, and to work with the AMWG and

Trù7G to update the GCDAMP Biennial Budget Process to a three-yeat, or triennial, budget and work
plan.

Recent Activities
While the GCDAMP FY 2015-17 Triennial Budget and Work Plan was completed and approved by the
Sectetary, the three-year budget process guidance is still in development. The BAHG will provide a

recommendation to the TWG, and the TWG will offer a recommendation to the AMSTG on this
subject, in the comingye t.

At its June 15,2016 meeting, TWG discussed the budget process and heard the following cornments
from stakeholders regarding g"tding documents, budget timeframe, prioritization, and environmental
compliance.

Page 2



Unitecl States Department of the Interior
OFIrlCltl OIr 1-l-lF. SECittETARY

Washingtorr, DC 2022t0

HAY 0 7 2011

MEMORANDUM

To: Jack Schmidt,
Chief, USGS Grand Canyon Monitoring and Research Center

Glen Knowles,
Chief, Adaptive Management Group, Reclamation, Upper

From: Anne J. Castle, Secretary's Designee, Assistant Secretary for Water and

Subject: Glen Canyon l)am Adaptive Management Program Triennial Budget and Work Plan

This memo provides the strategic direction for the development of the Glen Canyon Dam
Adaptive Management Program (GCDAMP) work plan and associated budget, consistent with
the priorities of the Secretary of the Interior on ensuring healthy watersheds and sustainable,
secure water supplies and with the directives of the Grand Canyon Protection Act. Since
development of the last biennial budget and work plan, we have had many conversations about
the Adaptive Management Program. The goal of these conversations has been to improve the
effectiveness of the GCDAMP. Moving from a single year budget to a biennial budget was a
step forward, but the Interior representatives and many GCDAMP stakeholders believe there
remains room for improvement based on what we have learned during the last few years. In an
era of shrinking federal budgets, we must target our limited resources to the highest priorities,
stay sufficiently nimble to respond to changing needs, and make sure that we are funding those
activities that continue to address critical questions. We also need to ensure that the impressive
collective knowledge, judgment, and experience of the members of the Adaptive Management
Work Group (AMWG) are put to the most valuable use.

The GCDAMP needs a budget and work plan process that is flexible and resilient, that maintains
the adaptive management focus of the GCDAMP, and that continues efforts to transition from a
concentration on large-scale experimental science to increased focus on applied science to
inform management actions. In 2010, we adopted a two-year non-rolling process for review of
the Grand Canyon Monitoring and Research Center (GCMRC) and Bureau of Reclamation work
plan and budget, partly in order to reduce the amount of time spent by the AMWG stakeholders
(as well as GCMRC) on detail-level budget issues. Similarly, as recommended by the Institute
for Environmental Conflict Resolution, we have refined the role of the AMWG to better utilize
the AMWG's expertise and leadership by f-ocusing discussions on policy consultation and more
substantive, less-detailed review of individual elements of the budget and work plan. Most
AMWG members and interested parties agree that the GCDAMP has been well served by these
efforts to "get out of the weeds" on budget issues. By working with the Secretary to delineate
more specifically the issues on which the AMWG's advice is requested and focus the agenda on



those science and policy priorities, the AMV/G has become more effective at meeting its charge
to advise the Secretary on how best to operate Glen Canyon Dam.

There is still room for improvement. As we discussed at our February 2014 AMWG meeting,
there are inefhciencies in the biennial process. The budget is adopted on a fiscal year basis,
meaning that it starts on October 1. The first year's field work typically begins the following
summer, and the second fiscal year of the biennial budget begins before the first field season has

ended, The existing schedule calls for the program to begin development of the next biennial
work plan during the early part of the second hscal year, but, at that point, the results of the first
year's data collection effort are only just becoming available and have not been subject to much
interpretation. Under Dr. Jack Schmidt's leadership, the budget development process is
inclusive and transparent, which has been applauded by AMWG and TWG members, but it still
requires considerable time and resources. As currently structured, this detailed process for
development of the two-year work plan and budget is not well informed by the most recent
scicnce beuause of the overlap betweer the timing of field work, the time it takes to process and

analyze data, and the time frames of fiscal years and the budget development process.

I believe we can improve on our efforts to make the GCDAMP and AMWG more effective by
further refining the time GCMRC, Reclamation, the AMTWG, and the Technical Work Group
(TV/G) spend in the budget development process by creating a work plan with a three-year
scientific vision on which the annual budgets are based. Nevertheless, a three-year budget
process must also recognize that scientific learning and funding availability may require mid-
course adjustments.

Accordingly, I am directing GCMRC and Reclamation to develop a three-year scientif,rc work
plan and associated budgets for the GCDAMP for fiscal years 2015-2017 and to work with the
AMWG and TWG to prepare a triennial budget development timeline and process that can be

used in the future. This proposed timeline and process will reflect the priorities and transitions
desuibed above. The timeline will also provide target dates for mid-course review of the work
plan and budget.

I recognize that it will be a challenge to develop both a three-year budget and work plan as well
as a process for the development of future work plans, and I thank you in advance for the effort
required. This concept is consistent with the process and planning document that the AMWG
approved on May 6,2010 (when the biennial process was first adopted), which was explicitly
intended "to reduce the effort currently expended on the budget process while maintaining a

high-quality adaptive management program." By further focusing this process, we will make
even more effective use of AMWG, TWG, and Budget Ad Hoc Group (BAHG) members'time.
The draft FY 2015-2017 budget and work plan (DBWP) will be developed by GCMRC and
Reclamation based on input received from the TWG and Interior agencies and will be organized
around the four Desired Future Conditions: Colorado River Ecosystem, Cultual Resources,
Recreation, and Hydropower. Reclamation and GCMRC will also consider the
recommendations TWG provided following its April 2014 meeting. The DBWP must also be

responsive to the outcomes of the LTEMP EIS and be able to provide monitoring and research
support for the experimental framework established by the LTEMP. Thus, work plan

2



development may necessitate modificationS late in the process to address LTEMP monitoring
and research needs associated with the expected completion of LTEMP later this year.

In my March 31,2011, memorandum to GCMRC regarding science planning, I identihed three
main science priorities: science relevant to compliance with the Endangered Species Act,
particularly relative to native fish and humpback chub; science informing our compliance with
the Grand Canyon Protection Act, especially the sediment resource; and science on non-native
fish control and the recreational trout fishery, Our understanding of these issues and the
interactions among them has continued to evolve, and these priority issues will be fully analyzed
in the LTEMP EIS. Thus, the need for this science continues.

As I also noted in my memorandum, however, it is expected that our concems about other
resources might increase in response to development of Desired Future Conditions and other
recommendations. At the time of my 2011 memorandum, it did not appear that there were
significant science questions related to cultural resources, although those resources were
identified as a high priority for resource management. Subsequently, there have been
advancements in understanding about how cultural and archaeological sites are linked to modern
river processes and the role of Traditional Ecological Knowledge (TEK) in contributing to
scientific understanding and river operations, and the FYl3/14 biennial science plan included a
research project to help understand that issue. These issues should also be considered priorities.

While LTEMP will address these issues and others, I think these four issues (the three described
in my 201I memo and the evolving issue related to cultual/archaeological resources as linked to
modern river processes) are the primary areas where GCMRC should concentrate its scientific
resources. It is also important to reiterate that these priorities do not preclude other issues for
scientific investigation where such investigation has widespread support and furthers the
purposes of the Adaptive Management Program. Additionally, long-term monitoring of core
ecosystem components must continue. The challenge of Work Plan development is to develop a

robust scientific program within the relevant budget constraints.

Pending development of the triennial timeline and process described above, I suggest the
following procedure for moving forward this year: Reclamation and GCMRC will distribute the
DBWP to the Budget Ad Hoc Group (BAHG) and TWG prior to their respective meetings in
spring 2014. Reclamation and GCMRC will respond to input from the BAHG and TWG in the
materials submitted to the TWG at its June meeting. The TWG will provide a budget
recommendation to the AMWG for its August meeting that includes the revised triennial budget
and work plan development process created by TWG. The Science Advisors will have an
opportunity to review the DBWP and the TWG budget process revisions prior to the June TWG
meeting and wilt present its review of these materials at the meeting. The TWG will consider the
revised FY2015-2017 work plan and budget materials at its June meeting. That process will
allow for any TWG recommendations to the AMWG on significant un¡esolved issues to be

considered at the August AMWG meeting.

This revised work plan process invests the BAHG and TWG with significant responsibility for
working closely with GCMRC and Reclamation to resolve detailed or complex issues. The goal

3



remains to elevate to the AMWG only science and policy issues related to the work plan and
budget and avoid detailed discussion of specific line items at the AMWG level.

I greatly appreciate the work that Reclamation and GCMRC have done to improve the process,

as well as the thoughtful comments of many AMWG and TWG members on this subject. We all
share the goal of utilizing the time and expertise of the AMWG as efficiently as possible for the
benefit of the entire Adaptive Management Program. I believe these changes move us in a
positive direction, and will make the program more effective.

4







Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Votk Group
Agenda ftem Form
August 24-25,2016

Aoenda Item

-

Basin Hydrology and Watet Year (\ØY) 201,7 Hy&ogaph

Puroose of Asenda Item

To send a recofiunended WY 201,7 Glen Canyon Dam hydrograph to the Secretary of the Interior.

Action Reouested

-

Motion requested. The motion (see page 2) is recommended by T!øG. Howevet, no motion is

officially made unless and until an AMWG member makes the motion in accordance with the
AM$ØG Operating Procedures.

Presenters

Paul Davidson, Hydraulic Engineer, Buteau of Reclamation, Upper Colorado Region
Vineetha Kattha, State of Arizona AMWG Alternate and Technical Work Group Chair

Previous Action Taken

'/ June 14, 2016: T'ùøG passed the WY 201,7 Hydrograph motion by consensus.
/ Arrg.rst 27r2015: At its August 2015 meeting the AMWG passed a motion to recommend to

the Secretary of the Interior het apptoval of the DOI-DOE Proposed Hydtograph for WY
2076. Prevtous year hydrographs (water years 20'1.2,2073,2014 and 201.5) were also
tecommended by the TWG and the AMSØG and approved by the Secretary of the Interior

Relevant Science

The T!ØG has been ptesented with a proposal for the WY 2077 Hydrogaph and operational
scenar{os based on the range of curent projected hydrology. The anticipated range of conditions
and objectives for 20'17 remain similar to ptevious years, therefore, the targeted approach adopted as

the 2072,201.3,2074,201.5, and 2076 Hy&oetaphs is tecommended again for the VlY 2017
Hydrograph.

Summarv of Presentation and Backoround Information

Basin Hydtology
The first portion of the presentation is intended to provide pertinent information to AMSTG
members on current water supply and forecasted hydrologic conditions within the Uppet Colorado
River Basin. The presentation will focus on ptojected teservoit conditions and opetations at Lake
Powell/Glen Canyon Dam for the remainder of WY 2076 and ptovide an outlook forWY 2077.

WY 2016 Hydrograph
The second portion of the ptesentation will covet the potential range of annual telease volumes
from Lake Powell in WY 20'1,7 and the ptoposed WY 20'1.7 Hy&ogaph,which is unchanged ftom
that which was recoÍunended and apptoved fot WY 2016.Yineetha Kartha, TrJøG Chair, will
provide a brief summary of the TWG delibetation and motion.

Page 1



Basin Hydrology and WY 2077 Hydrograph, condnued

Motion tequested: The following ptoposed motion is based on the recornmendadon from the
TWG. However, no motion is presumed to be made unless and until an AMWG member makes
the motion in accordance with the AMWG Opetating Procedures.

AMWG recommends to the Secretary of the Interior for her approval the following Watet Year
2017 Hy&ogaph fot Glen Canyon Dam.
¡ Annual Release Volumes will be determined by the 2007 Intedm Guidelines and shall be

reviewed and adopted through the normal annual opetating plan process (in consultation with
the Basin States as appropdate).

r Monthlv Release Volumes are anlcioated to shift deoendins uoon: 11) the oroiected Annual
Release Volume, (2) power plant capacity, and (3) the magnitude of a potential High Flow
Experiment.

. Monthly Release Volumes m^y v^ry within the targets identified below. Any remaining montfily
operational flexibility will be used for existing power ptoduction operations under the Modified
Low Fluctuating Flow (MLFÐ altetnative selected by the 1996 ROD and contained in the 1995

FEIS and in compliance with all applicable NEPA compliance documents (HFE EA, NNFC
F,A,2007Interim Guidelines). Monthly release volumes ptoposed in this hydtogtaph will not
affect operating tier determinations for Lakes Powell and Mead under the 2007 Interim
Guidelines.

r Release obiective for lune is:

o 600 to 650 kaf for annual releases below 9.0 maf
o 800 kaf for annual releases of 9.0 maf to less than 9.5 maf
o 900 kaf for annual releases of 9.5 maf to less than 10 maf
o Gteatet than 900 kaf for annual teleases 1,0 maf and grc^ter

r Release obiective for Ausust is:

o 800 kaf fot annual telease below 9.0 maf
o 900 kaf for annual teleases of 9.0 maf to less than 1,0 maf
o Greatet than 900 kaf fot annual teleases 10 maf and gteater

I Release obiective for Seotember is:

o 600 kaf fot annual releases below 9.0 maf
o 700 kaf for annual releases of 9.0 maf to less than 10.0 maf
o 800 kaf ot gte tet fot annual teleases of 10.0 maf ot gre teri up to power plant capacity

for high equalization teleases
¡ Monthly Release Volumes will generally strive to maintain 600 kaf levels in the shoulder months

(spring and fall) and 800 kaf in the Decembet/Jan*ary andJuly/August timeftame.

Âdditionally, the Buteau of Reclamation will continue to apply best professional judgment in
conducting actual opetations and in response to changing conditions throughout the water year.

Such efforts will continue to be undertaken in coordination with the DOI/DOE agencies and in
consultadon with the Basin States as appropdate, to consider changing conditions and adjust
projected operadons in a manner consistent rvith the objectives of these parameters as stated above
and pursuant to the Law of the River.

Page 2



Science Advisors





Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Work Group
Agenda Item Information

August 24-25,2016

Aoenda Item

-

Science Advisors Chartet and Ptotocols Government to Govemment Consultations Update

Pumose of Aoenda Item
To update the AMWG on the progress of the requests from Ttibes for government to government
consultation regarding the Science Advisors Program's Chatter and Ptotocol.

Action Reouested

Information item only; we will answer questions but no action is requested.

Ptesenter

Katnna Gt^îtz, Chief, Adaptive Management Gtoup, Upper Colorado Region, Bureau of
Reclamation

Previous Action Taken

N/A

Relevant Science

N/A

Summarv of Presentation and Backoround Informadon

At the May 2076 AM'ù7G webinar several Tribal representatives exptessed concern about the
Science Advisots' chatter and protocols, the consideration of Tdbal perspectives in the progtam's
independent teview panels, and the planning process for a review of the cultural resources programs
within the GCDAMP. During the webinat, sevetal Tdbal teptesentatives asked for govetnment to
govemment consultation with Reclamation and indicated they would be sending a lettet of request.

Reclamation received letters requesting govemment to govemment consultadon ftom the Navajo
Nation and the Pueblo of Zunt regarding their expressed concerns on this topic. Reclamation
consulted with the Navajo Nation on July 26,201.6 and the Pueblo of Zunt on July 27 ,2016 in
response to these requests. Othet Tribal representatives have vetbally expressed that they may be

tequesting govemment to government consultadon on this matter as well, but that it would be at a
later date.

The revisions to the Science Advisots charter and protocol remain in dtaft form; comments and
suggestions on the draft are still being accepted. Until the updated charter and protocol has been

approved, the Science Advisors Progtam will continue to operate under the existing ptotocol and

charter. In particular, pending AMWG apptoval of the FY17 Science Advisots Ptogtam's Budget
and Worþlari, a review of cultural resources program within the GCDAMP is ptoposed forFYIT

Page 1



Science Advisots Chatet and Protocols Update, continued

Tribal involvement is ctitical to the success of this review ftom the initial planning stages, through
the criteria and selection of panel members, to the implementation and final reporting. Reclamation
is committed to the meaningful involvement of Tribal petspectives in this review.

Page2



Glen Canyon l)am Adaptive Management Work Group
Agenda Item Form
August 24-25,2016

Aøenda Item

-

Science Advisors P rcgrarr;'-2O 1 6 Accomplishments and 20'1.7 Plans

Puroose of Asenda Item

To provide an update to AMSØG membets regatding Science Advisors Program FY 2076 activities
and plans forFY 201.7

Action Reouested

-

Feedback requested from AMWG members.

Presenter

David Braun, Executive Cootdinatot for the Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Progtam
(GCDAMP) Science Advisots Program

Previous Action Taken

By Bureau of Reclamation: As a tesult of a competitive bid process, Reclamation chose Dr. David
Braun of Sound Science LLC in 2075 as the Executive Cootdinator for the GCDT{.MP Science
Advisots Program. The Executive Coordinatot acts as a contractor to Reclamation to manage the
Science Advisots Ptogram, and carries out these responsibilities undet the terms of specific Task
Ordets authonzed by Reclamation. Reclamation has so far authorized fout Task Otders for specific
work to be undertaken by the Executive Coordinator beginning in August 2075 and continuing
through FY 201,6.

Relevant Science

N/A

Summarv of Presentation and Backoround Information

Science Advisors Proeram (SAP) Executive Coordinator Activities in FY 2016
o Completed review of all documents that establish the SAP mission and protocols,

including the original (2000) Charter, subsequent AMWG-approved amendments, and
Reclamation contract terms. Compiled a proposed revised Science Advisor Program
Charter and Protocols and submitted it for TWG Steering Committee and then full TWG
review, which was to be followed by AMWG review. However, during the TWG review
and May 2016 AMWG webinar, GCDAMP participating Tribes expressed concerns
about how Native American perspectives could be included in SAP external reviews.
Action on the proposed revised charter and protocols has been suspended while
Reclamation responds to requests from Tribes for government to government
consultation.

Page 1



Science Advisors P rcgram-2O 1 6 Accomplishments and 2077 Plans, continued

Collaborated with the GCMRC to develop and implement a Protocol Evaluation Panel
(PEP) focused on the GCDAMP fisheries monitoring and research program. A report on
the PEP from the GCMRC Chief is also on the agenda for this AMWG meeting.
Made significant progress reconstituting the Science Advisor Program (SAP) archives,
with assistance from the GCMRC. The archives had become scattered through changes in
GCMRC administration and the departure of previous SAP Executive Coordinator.
Developed SAP work plan and budget for FY 2017 for incorporation into the
Reclamation FY2017 work plan and budget, after extensive and detailed consultation
with TWG and AMWG members and with the GCMRC and Reclamation.

Science Advisors Prosram (SAP) Plans for FY 2017
The Executive Coordinator developed the SAP FY 2017 work plan through close consultation
with the TWG, the GCMRC, and Reclamation, with additional advice from AMWG members
and the office of the Secretary's Designee. Previously, SAP work plans and budgets were
submitted as part of the GCMRC work plans and budgets after review by the GCMRC Chief.
With the change in administration of the SAP from the USGS to Reclamation, SAP work plans
and budgets are included within Reclamation work plans and budgets. The tasks proposed for the
SAP for FY 2017 are:

. Coordinate and contribute to an assessment of the 'State of Knowledge' for all bodies of
knowledge used by the AMWG and Secretary to guide their adaptive management
decision making for the GCDAMP. The assessment will be carried out in conjunction
with the Annual Reporting effort and TWG review of LTEMP Science Plan, to inform
development of the next (FYl8-20) Triennial Work Plan. Planning forthis undertaking
by the SAP Executive Coordinator, GCMRC, and TWG Steering Committee has already
started.

o In close consultation with the Tribes and GCDAMP Tribal Liaison, plan and begin
implementing a review of programs within the GCDAMP concerning cultural resources.
The planning for this review was put on hold while Reclamation responds to requests
from Tribes for govemment to government consultation on the Science Advisors
Program integration of Native American perspectives. Reclamation will give the AMWG
an update on the consultations.

o Complete reconstituting SAP archives and updating the GCDAMP Wiki site
accordingly.

. Work with the AMWG, TWG, and GCMRC to develop the next (FYl8-20) Triennial
Work Plan, to ensure it incorporates a robust program of external SAP contributions to
the GCDAMP.

o

a

a

Page2



Science Updates





 

 

  
 

 

 

 
 

  

  
 

 
 

 

Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Work Group 

Agenda Item Information 


August 24-25, 2016
 

Agenda Item 
Grand Canyon Monitoring and Research Center Science Updates 

Purpose of Agenda Item 
Bring AMWG members current with the latest research and selected monitoring results from 
GCMRC 

Action Requested
 
Information item only; we will answer questions but no action is requested. 


Presenters 
Paul Grams, Research Hydrologist, Grand Canyon Monitoring and Research Center 
Joel Sankey, Research Geologist, Grand Canyon Monitoring and Research Center 
Scott VanderKooi, Chief, Grand Canyon Monitoring and Research Center  

Previous Action Taken 
N/A 

Relevant Science 
N/A 

Summary of Presentation and Background Information 

Sand inputs to date and sandbar update:  Between December 1, 2015, and July 1, 2016, the sand 
storage in upper Marble Canyon decreased by approximately 700,000 metric tons (mt) (-640,000 to -
760,000 mt), while the sand storage in lower Marble Canyon decreased by approximately 110,000 mt 
(-32,000 to -190,000 mt) and sand storage in eastern Grand Canyon increased by approximately 
110,000 mt (-24,000 to 190,000 mt). Sand storage has decreased in Marble Canyon because erosion 
resulting from normal dam operations has not been replaced by inputs from the Paria River or other 
tributaries. Rates of erosion were highest during winter and summer when fluctuations peaked at 
18,000 to 20,000 ft3/s. Only about 1,300 metric tons of sand has been delivered by the Paria River 
since June 1, 2016. 

Between December 1, 2015, and March 2, 2016 (the date of the last download at RM166), sand 
storage in east central Grand Canyon (RM87-RM166) decreased by 180,000 mt (-120,000 to -
230,000 mt), and sand storage in west central Grand Canyon (RM166-RM225) increased slightly by 
92,000 mt (31,000 to 150,000 mt). The sand budgets for east and west central Grand Canyon will be 
updated through September 1, 2016, following downloads during the upcoming river trip.  

Page 1 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GCMRC Science Updates, continued

Between December 1, 2015, and June 16, 2016, approximately 740,000 mt of sand (710,000 to 
780,000 mt) were transported past Diamond Creek (RM225) into western Grand Canyon and the 
Lake Mead Delta. In summary, there was net erosion in upper Marble Canyon, lower Marble 
Canyon, and east central Grand Canyon. There was net deposition in eastern Grand Canyon and 
west central Grand Canyon.  

These data are available for inspection at 
http://www.gcmrc.gov/discharge_qw_sediment/reaches/GCDAMP/. 

 GCMRC has been monitoring riparian vegetation with multispectral imagery as well as lidar remote 
sensing data acquired periodically with overflights of Glen, Marble and Grand Canyons. Riparian 
vegetation has increased in area since completion of Glen Canyon Dam, and analysis of data 
acquired during the most recent overflight in 2013 shows that vegetation has continued to increase 
at elevations as low as below 24,000 CFS. Elevated base flows promote the expansion of riparian 
vegetation onto bare sand habitat and short pulses of high flow, such as controlled floods, do not 
keep vegetation from expanding onto bare sand habitat. Tamarisk is an invasive riparian shrub that 
occupies the most area of all riparian vegetation species in the canyons. The tamarisk shrub is preyed 
upon by the Tamarisk Beetle which has been in this region since 2009. The methods GCMRC uses 
to monitor changes in tamarisk vegetation associated with the beetle using remote sensing data will 
be described. The canopy cover of green, healthy tamarisk shrubs decreased from 2009 to 2013 and 
this decreased the amount of leaf biomass on the shrubs and increased the amount of leaf biomass 
shed to the floodplain. 

Rainbow trout densities remain highest in Glen Canyon and the upstream third of Marble Canyon 
and lowest downstream of the confluence with the Little Colorado River. Abundance of rainbow 
trout in all these reaches remains low and at levels even lower than those observed in 2015. Trout 
densities downstream of the Little Colorado River confluence remain below trigger levels identified 
in the 2011 USFWS Biological Opinion on nonnative fish control. Mark-recapture efforts in Glen 
Canyon again show little movement of rainbow trout. On average, marked rainbow trout were 
recaptured just upstream (0.09 km) of their initial release locations. Unlike in 2013-2015, little 
evidence of rainbow trout reproduction was detected at sites downstream from Lees Ferry in 2016. 
Catches of brown trout upstream of Lees Ferry were considerably higher in January and April 2016 
in comparison to the same months in 2015. Brown trout catches near the confluence of the Little 
Colorado River remained low, similar to observations in 2014 and 2015.  

Trout removal using electrofishing occurred in the mainstem Colorado River near the confluence 
with Bright Angel Creek in early February, 2016. This experimental action is being conducted in 
collaboration with Grand Canyon National Park, consistent with the NPS Comprehensive Fisheries 
Management Plan and related compliance documents. The removal effort was scheduled for 
February 2016 to avoid conflicts with a potential November 2015 High Flow Experiment (which did 
not occur) and associated logistical constraints. Unlike previous efforts in late 2013 and early 2014, 
turbidity of the river was low for most of the trip which likely increased capture probabilities. 
Despite these conditions, very few trout were harvested and catches of native fish, including 2 
humpback chub, outnumbered nonnatives. All harvested fish were cleaned, vacuum sealed in bags, 
and frozen for human consumption. 

Juvenile humpback chub catches in the mainstem near the Little Colorado River in July were similar 
to those observed in July 2013, 2014, and 2015. Population estimates generated by the USFWS for 

 Page 2 

http://www.gcmrc.gov/discharge_qw_sediment/reaches/GCDAMP


 
 

 

GCMRC Science Updates, continued

sub-adult (150-199 mm) and adult (> 200 mm) humpback chub in the Little Colorado River were 
still depressed compared to the highs witnessed in recent years, especially for sub-adults. Spring 
humpback chub population estimates in the Little Colorado River were 749 (95% CI, 589 to 909) 
sub-adult fish, and 3,974 (95% CI, 3,360 to 4,589) adult fish. It is unknown at this time if this 
represents a real decline in the abundance of adult humpback chub, however, there were relatively 
small cohorts of age 0 chub produced in 2013 and 2014. A similar decline in adults (although not as 
pronounced) occurred in 2011, thought to be caused by a small cohort of age 0 chub produced in 
2009. 

 Page 3 





Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Work Group
Agenda Item Information

August 24-25,2016

Aøenda Item

-

Science Behind High Flow Experiment Planning: From Chasing Storms in the Paria River Basin to
Serving Data on the ìØeb

Puroose of Asenda Item

The purpose of this agenda item is to review the scientific activities tequired to plan and implement
High Flow Experiments

Action Reouested

Information item only; we v¡ill answer questions but no action is requested.

Presentet

David Topping, Research Hydrologisg U.S. Geological Survey, Gtand Canyon Monitoring and
Reseatch Centet

Previous Action Taken

N/A

Relevant Science

N/A

Summarv of Presentation and Backoround Informaüon

This presentation will describe the steps requited in the field, the labotatory, and on the web which
ate ptovided by GCMRC in support of planning for High Flow Experiments (HFE). In addition,
this presentation will describe how the sediment-transport data served on the web ate used as input
to the model used to design HFE hydrographs, and how these data ate also used to evaluate the
model predictions and HFE response. An update on the cutrent sediment status in Marble Canyon
will also be ptovided.

Page 1,





Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Work Group
Agenda Item Information

August 24-25,2016

Aoenda Item

-

Sandbar Modeling Ptoject Update

Puroose of Asenda Item

Ptovide update on recent findings of sandbar-related tesearch including the variability of eddy
sandbar response during two decades of controlled flooding along the Colorado River in Matble
Canyon and Grand Canyon

,{.ction Reouested

-

Information item only; we will ans\¡r''er questions but no action is requested.

Ptesentets

Erich R. Muellet, Research Hydrologist, U.S. Geological Survey, GCMRC

Ptevious Action Taken

N/A

Relevant Science

N/A

Summarv of Presentadon and Backsround Informatlon

Repeat topogtaphic measurements from 45 eddy sandbars throughout the Marble Canyon and

Grand Canyon has demonstrated that high-flow experiments (HFEÐ cause deposition of sand and
increase 

^vet^gebar 
size. Howevet, the magnitude of sandbar deposition has varied ftom eddy to

eddy, even over short distances whete flow and suspended-sediment properties were similar. We
have characterized temporal ttends in sandbar size and sediment storage as a function of flow,
channel, and vegetation chatacteristics that teflect the hydtaulic envitonment. The variability in
response between sites teflects, in patÇ the geomoqphic setting of individual fan-eddy complexes.
This variability also cottesponds to the degree of vegetation establishment since the 1980s when
most sandbars were cleated of vegetation. Sandbars in narrow eddies are less-vegetated, water
surface elevation (stage) changes tapidly with discharge, and sandbars are more dynamic. In widet
settings, where stage change during floods is less, HFE deposits have become stabilized by
vegetation and increased in elevation. Bar-building during floods has decreased thtough dme at these
sites. Measurements 10 months after floods in2072,2013,and 2014 show thatzverage sandbat
volumes may inctease when floods are more frequen! especially on the high-elevation parts of bars.
This likely reflects deceased erosion between HFEs 

^tflantow, 
dynamic sites and continued

deposition on stabilized parts of bars at widet, lowet energy sites. Ideally, a geomo{phic-grouping
framework can be used to assess whether the long-term monitodng sites are representative and to
anürpate long-tetm sandbat change along the 400 km river corddot.

Page 1





Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Work Group
Agenda Item Information

August 24-25,2016

Asenda Item

Aquatic Foodbase of the Little Colorado River

Puroose of Asenda ltem

This v¡ill be a sciendfic presentation about an ongoing research project on the food tesources

avallable to the largest population of endangered humpback chub in the Colorado River Basin.

Action Reouested

Information item only; we will answer questions but no action is requested.

Presenter

Jeff Muehlbauet, USGS Reseatch Ecologist

Ptevious r{.ction Taken

N/A

Relevant Science

N/A

Summarv of Presentation and Backoround Informaüon

The Litde Colorado River (LCR) provides ctitical spawning and juvenile tearing habitat for the
largest remaining population of endangered humpback chub in the Colorado River Basin. Yet
surprisingly little is known about the condition of the aquatic foodbase of invettebrates in the LCR
that provide food fot chub and other fish species. Fot the past three years, our group has been

sampling the aquadc invertebrate community of the LCR, four times per year, throughout its entire
21,-kn, petennial reach. This presentation will focus on the results of this effott, especially the
pronounced seasonal and spatial pattems in aquatic invettebrate density and availability throughout
the LCR. Specifically, we found that invertebnte avallabiltly peaked in spring and was othetwise low
throughout the remainder of the year. We also found that light avatlabitty, as influenced both by
canyon shading and turbidity, exerted a strong spatial control on invertebrate densities. These tesults
may provide insight into chub behaviors and distributions thtoughout the LCR in both time and

sPace.

Page I





Basin Fund





Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Work Group
Agenda Item Information

August 24-25,2016

Agenda Item

Basin Fund and Revenue Overview

Purpose of Agenda Item

To share crucial information about the Colorado River Stotage Project (CRSP) system and Glen
Canyon Dam from a hydtopowet production point of view.

Action Requested

Information item only; we will answer questions but no action is requested.

Presentet

LynnJeka, Senior \rP and Colorado River Storage Project Manager, Western Area
Powet,{dministration, Departrnent of Energy

Ptevious Action Taken

N/A

Relevant Science

N/A

of Presentation and Background Information

This infotmational ptesentation will provide an overview of CRSP. You will have an oppotunity to
learn about how we establish the rates our customers pay for the power they receive, how the
resulting revenues are used, and how the approximateþ $20 million per year for environmental
programs are funded. In addition, you'll leam how the Basin Fund is operated and why it is critical
to CRSP, Reclamation, the seven Basin States, the Upper Colorado and San Juan Rivet Recovery
Implementation Ptograms, and the Glen Canyon,A.daptive Management Program.

Congress created the Colorado River Stotage Ptoject (CRSP) though the CRSP Act of 1956 (Act of
April 11, 1.956, ch.203,70 Stat. 105). The Act authorized the Sectetary of the Interior to construct,
operate, and matntatn the Colorado River Storage Project and participating ptojects. In the same

Act, Congress authorized a separate fund in the Treasury of the United States to be known as the
Uppet Colorado River Basin Fund (refetted to as the Basin Fund).

60 years later the'Western Area Powet Administration's CRSP Management Centet works
collaboratively in partnetship with the Bureau of Reclamation (R.eclamation) to generate and matket
power from the Colorado River Storage Project, Collbran, Seedskadee, Dolotes and Rio Grande

Page 1



Basin Fund and Revenue Overview, continued

projects (marketed together as the Salt Lake City Area Integrated Projects) and deliver this power to
Firm Electtic Service customers.

\Øith a total investment of $2.375 billion, 11 power plants, 24 generannÊ units, and 2,325 miles of
üansmission lines CRSP and Reclamation provide clean, teliable, wholesale electric setvice to 130

wholesale customeïs in the west including 53 Native American tribes. Our serrice teritory spans

Aizona,New Mexico, Nevada, Colomdo, Utah, Texas and Wyoming.

Page 2



Federal L¡aison Report





Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Work Group
Agenda Item Information

August 23-25,2016

,A.oenda Item

-

Federal -Tribal Liaison Report

Action Reouested

-

Information item only; we will answer questions but no action is requested.

Presenter

Dr. Satah E. Rinkevich, Federal-Tribal Liaison for the Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management
Ptogram

Ptevious Action Taken

N/A

Relevant Science

N/A

Summarv of Presentation and Backcround Information

Satah Rinkevich will report on Federal-Tribal Liaison's activities from February through August
2016. These activities included coordination meetings with the Grand Canyon Monitoring and
Research Center and attending meetings of the Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management lüØork

Group and Technical Work Group. In addition, the Liaison report will include achievements made,

and continuing challenges with tegard to inco¡potating Tdbal perspectives and knowledge into the
AMP.

Page'L





Stakeholderts Perspective





Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Work Group
Agenda Item Form
August 24-25,2016

Asenda ltem

Stakeholder's Perspective: The River of Never-Ending Life-Cultural Resources from
Navajo

Puroose of Asenda Item

To explain why the Navajo Nation is an,\MWG member, what they hope to achieve at the
AMWG table, and what is important to Navajo about the Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive
Management Progtam.

Action Reouested

-

Information item only; we will ariswer questions but no action is requested.

Presenter

Melinda Arviso-Ciocco, AM$ØG Alternate and Navajo Cultural Specialist, Traditional
Cultute Progtam, Navajo Nation Histotic Pteservation Depattment

Previous ,\ction Taken

N/A

Relevant Science

N/A

Summarv of Presentation and Backqround Information

The Navajo Nation is one of five tribes that paticipates in the Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive
Management Program. Each tribe has unique perspectives and concerns relative to the
Grand Canyon. Ms. Arviso-Ciocco will discuss the Navajo Nation's relationship to the
Canyon and goals for their paticipation in the AMP.





LTEMP





Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Work Group
Agenda Item Form
August 24-25,2016

Aoenda ltem

Long-Term Experimental Management Plan (I-TEMP) Environmental Impact Statement (EIS)
Update and Science Plan

Puroose of Asenda ltem

To provide an update on, and an opportunity to ask questions about, the LTEMP EIS and its
associated science plan.

Action Reouested

Informadon item only. We will answer questions; no action is requested.

Presenters

Rob Billetbeck, Colorado Rivet Coordinator, National Patk Service
KatrinaGtantz, Chief, Adaptive Management Gtoup, Upper Colorado River Region, Bureau of

Reclamation
Scott VanderKooi, Chiet Grand Canyon Monitodng and Reseatch Centet

Previous Action Taken

June 29 , 2075: The Cooperating Agency Draft EIS, Volume 1 was released.

J,iy 3'1.,201.5:The CoopetatingAgency Draft EIS Appendices, Volume 2,was released.

January 8,2016: The Public Dtaft EIS @EIS) was teleased for comment, with a deadline of April T,

2076.Tbts was later extended to May 9.

February 16-Match 1,,201,6: Two public meetings and two webinars were held to take comments
and answer questions on the DEIS.

May 9,2016: Public comment period on the DEIS was closed.

Relevant Science

The full text of the LTEMP DEIS is available here:http://ltempeis.anl.gov/documentsf draft-eisf

Summarv of Presentation and Backsround Information

LTEMP EIS Update

Rob Billetbeck and Katnna Gra;ntz will present an overv-iew of the LTEMP EIS with a desctiption
of the preferred alternative. The presentation will highlight all changes made to the prcferted
alternative and the text of the EIS since the telease of the public dtaft. The presentation will also

briefly describe the genetal types of comments received on the draft EIS and describe how these

comments were addressed. The next steps for the Endangered Species,\ct consultation (Biological
Assessment and Biological Opinion), National Historic Preservation Act Section 106 compliance

Page 1



LTEMP EIS Update and Science Plan, continued

@rogrammatic Agreement), and anticipated timeline for Final EIS and Record of Decision will also
be discussed.

LTEMP Science Plan

Scott VandetKooi will ptovide an oven'iew of the LTEMP Science Plan. The science plan ptovides
the strategy by which monitoring and reseatch data in the natutal and social sciences will be

collected, analyzed, and provided to the Department of the Interior pOI), its bureaus, and to the
Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Program (GCDAMP) dudng the LTEMP period. The
LTEMP Science Plan describes the overall data collection, analysis, modeling, and intetpretation
activities to be conducted by the U.S. Geological Survey Grand Canyon Monitoring and Reseatch
Center (GCMRC), partner agencies and its cooperators that will inform decisions about operations
of Glen Canyon Dam and management of downstteam resources. The specific activities will be
described in GCMRC's Triennial Work Plans that will be developed dudng the LTEMP
implementation pedod and will be teviewed and recommended by the GCDAMP and approved by
the Secretary of the Interior.

Page 2



Miscellaneous





Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Work Group 
Committee Membership List  

(Updated: August 16, 2016) 
 

Secretary’s Designee: 
VACANT 
Principal Deputy Assistant Secretary 
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Water and Science 
1849 C Street NW 
Washington, DC  20240 
Tel:  202-208-3186   Fax:  202-208-6948 
EM:   

Secretary’s Designee’s Alternate: 
Brent Rhees 
Regional Director 
Upper Colorado Region 
125 S. State Street, Room 8100 
Salt Lake City, UT  84138 
Tel:  801-524-3600    Fax:  802-524-3855 
EM:  brhees@usbr.gov  

 
      

Federal Agencies 
 
Bureau of Reclamation, Upper Colorado Region  
Daniel Picard (member)  
Deputy Regional Director 
125 S. State Street, Room 8100 
Salt Lake City, UT  84138 
Tel:  801-524-3602   Fax: 801-524-3855 
EM:  dpicard@usbr.gov 
 
Kathleen Callister (alternate)  
Tel:  801-524-3781 Fax:  801-524-3807 
EM: kcallister@usbr.gov    
 

 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
Steve Spangle (member) 
Field Supervisor 
Arizona Ecological Services Office 
2321 W. Royal Palm Road 
Phoenix, AZ  85021 
Office: 602/242-0210, x-244  Fax: 602/242-2513 
EM:  steve_spangle@fws.gov    
 
Kirk Young (alternate) 
Arizona Fish and Wildlife Conservation Office 
2500 S. Pine Knoll Drive 
Flagstaff, AZ 86001   
Tel:  928-556-2124 Fax: 928-556-2125 
EM:  kirk_young@fws.gov 
 

Bureau of Indian Affairs 
Charles “Chip” Lewis (member) 
Western Regional Office 
2600 North Central Avenue, 4th Floor 
Phoenix, AZ  85004-3050 
Tel:  602-379-6782  Fax:  602-379-3837 
EM:  charles.lewis@bia.gov  
 
Garry J. Cantley (alternate) 
Tel:  602-379-6750 x1257   Fax:  602-379-3833 
EM: garry.cantley@bia.gov  
 

National Park Service 
VACANT  (member)  
Superintendent 
Grand Canyon National Park 
P.O. Box 129 
Grand Canyon, AZ  86023 
Tel:  928-638-7945  Fax:  928-638-7815 
EM:   
 
Jan Balsom (alternate) 
Tel:  928-638-7758  Fax:  928-638-7815 
EM:  jan_balsom@nps.gov  

  

Indian Tribes 
 
Hopi Tribe 
Leigh J. Kuwanwisiwma (member) 
Director, Hopi Cultural Preservation Office 
The Hopi Tribe 
P.O. Box 123 
Kykotsmovi, AZ  86030 
Tel:  928-734-3611  Fax:  928-734-3629 
EM:  lkuwanwisiwma@hopi.nsn.us 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Navajo Nation 
VACANT (member) 
PO Box 4950 
Window Rock AZ  86515 
Tel:  928-871-7198 Fax:   
EM:   
 
Melissa Arviso-Ciocco (alternate) 
Tel:  928-871-7153 
maciocco@navajo-nsn.gov  
Timothy Begay (alternate)  
Tel:  928-871-7152 
 



 2

 
Hopi Tribe 
Michael Yeatts (alternate)  
Dept. of Anthropology/Hopi Cultural Preservation Office  
P.O. Box 15200 
Flagstaff, AZ  86011-5200 
Tel:  928-523-6573  Fax:  928-523-9135 
EM:  michael.yeatts@nau.edu 
 
 
Hualapai Tribe 
Dawn Hubbs (member) 
Hualapai Department of Cultural Resources 
Historic Preservation Office, West Route 66 
P.O. Box 310 
Peach Springs, AZ  86434 
Tel:  928-769-2223   Fax:  928-769-2309 
EM:  dawn.hubbs@gmail.com 
 
Kerry Christensen (alternate) 
Hualapai Department of Cultural Resources 
Historic Preservation Office, West Route 66 
P.O. Box 310 
Peach Springs, AZ  86434 
Peach Springs, AZ  86434-0300 
Tel:  928-769-2255 Fax:  928-769-2309 
EM:  cuszhman@yahoo.com 
 

Pueblo of Zuni 
Eric Bobelu (member) 
PO Box 339 
1203-B NM State Highway 53 
Zuni, NM  87327 
Tel:  505-782-7000 
EM:  eric.bobelu@ashiwi.org 
 
Carleton Bowekaty (alternate)  
PO Box 339 
1203-B NM State Highway 53 
Zuni, NM  87327 
Tel:  505-782-7192 
EM:  carleton.bowekaty@ashiwi.org 
 

San Juan Southern Paiute Tribe 
(no specific representation) 
P.O. Box 2656 
Tuba City, AZ 86045 
 

Southern Paiute Consortium 
Charley Bulletts (member)) 
Director, Southern Paiute Consortium 
H.C. 65 Box 2 
Fredonia, AZ  86022 
Tel: 928-643-6278   Fax:  928-643-7260 
Cell: 435-689-1557 
EM: cbulletts@kaibabpaiute-nsn.gov 
 
Meghann Olson (alternate)  
Southern Paiute Consortium 
H.C. 65 Box 2 
Fredonia, AZ  86022 
Tel: 928-643-8314   Fax:  928-643-7260 
EM: molson@kaibabpaiute-nsn.gov 
 
 

Seven Basin States 
 
Arizona 
Tom Buschatzke (member) 
Arizona Dept. of Water Resources 
Water Planning Division 
1110 W. Washington Street, Suite 310  
Phoenix, AZ  85007 
Tel:  602-771-8412  Fax:  602-771-8681 
EM:  tbuschatzke@azwater.gov  
 
Vineetha Kartha (alternate) 
Colorado River Water Management Section 
Tel:  602-771-8552  Fax:  602-771-8686 
EM:  vkartha@azwater.gov  

 
New Mexico 
Deborah Dixon (member) 
Director, New Mexico Interstate Stream Commission 
Bataan Memorial Building 
P.O. Box 25102 
Santa Fe, NM 87504-5102 
Tel:  505-827-6103 
EM:  deborah.dixon@state.nm.us  
 
Don Ostler (alternate) 
Upper Colorado River Commission 
355 South 400 East 
Salt Lake City, UT  84111-2969 



 3

 
 
 

Tel:  801-531-1150 Fax:  531-9705 
EM:  dostler@ucrcommsion.com 
 
 

California 
Tanya M. Trujillo (member) 
Executive Director 
Colorado River Board of California 
770 Fairmont Avenue, Suite 100 
Glendale, CA  91203-1068 
Tel:  818-500-1625 ext. 308  Fax:  818-543-4685 
EM:  ttrujillo@crb.ca.gov  
 
Christopher S. Harris (alternate) 
Tel:  818-500-1625, ext. 309  Fax:  818-543-4685 
EM:  csharris@crb.ca.gov  
 

Utah 
Eric L. Millis (member) 
Director, Division of Water Resources 
1594 W. North Temple 
Salt Lake City, UT  84114 
Tel:  801-538-7230  Fax:  801-538-7279 
EM: ericmillis@utah.gov 
 
Robert King  (alternate)  
Tel:  801-538-7230  Fax:  801-538-7279 
EM:  robertking@utah.gov 
 

Colorado 
John H. McClow (member) 
(Colorado Water Conservation Board) 
Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 
210 West Spencer, Suite B 
Gunnison, CO  81230 
Tel: 970-641-6065   Fax:  970-641-1162 
EM:  jmcclow@ugrwcd.org  
 
VACANT (alternate) 
Tel:  303-866-3441 x3220  Fax:  303-866-4474 
EM:  

Wyoming 
Steven W. Wolff (member) 
Colorado River Coordinator, Interstate Streams Division 
State Engineer’s Office 
122 W. 25th Street 
Cheyenne, WY  82002-0370 
Tel:  307-777-1942  Fax:  307-777-5451 
EM:  steve.wolff@wyo.gov  
 
Don Ostler (alternate)  
Upper Colorado River Commission 
355 South 400 East 
Salt Lake City, UT  84111-2969 
Tel:  801-531-1150 Fax:  531-9705 
EM:  dostler@ucrcommission.com 
 

Nevada 
Jayne Harkins (member) 
Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
555 E. Washington Avenue, Suite 3100 
Las Vegas, NV  89101-1048 
Tel:  702-486-2670   Fax:  702-486-2695 
EM: jharkins@crc.nv.gov  
 
Warren Turkett (alternate)  
Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
555 E. Washington Avenue, Suite 3100 
Las Vegas, NV  89101-1048 
Tel:  702-486-2672  Fax:  702-486-2697 
EM: wturkett@crc.nv.gov  
 
     
 

  

 

Environmental Interests 
 
Grand Canyon Wildlands Council 
Larry Stevens (member)  
P.O. Box 1315 
Flagstaff, AZ  86002 
Tel:  928-380-7724 
EM: larry@grandcanyonwildlands.org  
 

 
National Parks Conservation Association 
David Nimkin (member) 
307 West 200 South, Suite 5000 
Salt Lake City, UT  84101 
Tel:  801-521-0785   Fax:  801-359-2367 
EM:  dnimkin@npca.org  
 



 4

Kevin Dahl (alternate) 
NPCA, Southwest Region 
738 N. 5th Avenue, Suite 222 
Tucson, AZ  85705 
Tel:  520-624-2014  Cell:  520-603-6430 
EM:  kdahl@npca.org  
 

Recreational Interests 
 
International Federation of Fly Fishers/Trout 
Unlimited 
John Jordan (member) 
Federation of Fly Fishers 
4510 E. Joshua Tree Lane 
Paradise Valley, AZ  85253 
Tel:  602-840-4224 
EM:  jcjordan1@cox.net  
 
John Hamill (alternate) 
1254 N. Fox Hill Road 
Flagstaff, AZ  86004 
Tel:  928-606-4234 (cell)   
EM:  hamilldsrt50@msn.com  
  

 
Grand Canyon River Guides 
David Brown (member) 
219 8th Avenue 
Salt Lake City UT  84103 
Tel:  801- 694-1228 
EM:  dbrown@swca.com  
 
Ben Reeder (alternate) 
6380 South 2300 East 
Holladay, UT  84121 
Tel:  801-860-1070 
EM: benreeder@hotmail.com  

Federal Power Purchase Contractors 
 
CREDA 
Leslie James (member) 
10429 S. 51st Street, Suite 230 
Phoenix, AZ  85044 
Tel:  480-477-8646   Fax:  480-477-8647 
EM:  creda@creda.cc 
 
Edward A. Gerak (alternate)  
Buckeye Water Conservancy and Draining District 
3100 N. Summer Street 
Buckeye, AZ  85396 
Tel:  623-238-1374 
EM:  edgerak@msn.com   
 

 
UAMPS 
Ted Rampton (member) 
155 North 400 West, Suite 480 
Salt Lake City, UT  84103 
Tel:  801-566-3938   Fax:  801-561-2687 
EM:  ted@uamps.com 
 
Clifford Barrett  (alternate) 
845 Lakeview 
Stansbury Park, UT  84074-1912 
Tel:  435-882-0164 
EM:  cibarre@q.com  
 

Other Stakeholders 
 
Arizona Game & Fish Department 
James deVos (member) 
Asst. Director, Wildlife Management Division 
5000 W. Carefree Highway 
Phoenix, AZ  85086-5000 
Tel:  623-236-7302  Fax:  623-236-7366 
EM:  jdevos@azgfd.gov  
 
Chris Cantrell (alternate)  
Tel:  602-942-3000 7259 
EM:  ccantrell@azgfd.gov 
 
 

 
Dept of Energy-Western Area Power 
Administration 
Lynn Jeka (member)  
Western Area Power Administration 
150 Social Hall Avenue, Suite 300 
Salt Lake City, UT  84111   
Tel:  801-524-6372   Fax:   
EM: jeka@wapa.gov  
 
Brian Sadler (alternate)   
Tel:  801-524- 5506   Fax:   
EM: sadler@wapa.gov  
 

 
  
  
 



 
 

Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Work Group Membership 
(U:\gcamp\AMWG\3_Membership by entity.doc) 

 
Updated: August 16, 2016 

      Secretary’s Designee:  VACANT 
 Alternate to the Secretary’s Designee:  Upper Colorado Region Director (Brent Rhees) 
 

 AMWG Member Appointed AMWG Alternate Affiliation 

 
Federal Agencies 

 
1 Charles “Chip” Lewis 8/6/13 Garry Cantley Bureau of Indian Affairs 
2 Daniel Picard 7/10/15 Kathleen Callister Bureau of Reclamation  
3 VACANT 2/16/12 Jan Balsom NPS – Grand Canyon National Park 
4 Steve Spangle 1/4/13 Kirk Young U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 

 
Indian Tribes 

 
5 Dawn Hubbs 2/16/16 Kerry Christensen Hualapai Tribe 
6 Leigh J. Kuwanwisiwma 6/27/1997 Mike Yeatts Hopi Tribe 
7 VACANT  Melinda Arviso-Ciocco  

Timothy Begay 
Navajo Nation 

8 Eric Bobelu 2/16/16 Carleton Bowekaty Pueblo of Zuni 
9 Charley Bulletts 12/4/06 Meghann Olson Southern Paiute Consortium 

 
Seven Basin States 

 
10 Tom Buschatzke 11/19/12 Vineetha Kartha State of Arizona (ADWR) 
11 Tanya Trujillo 7/25/14 Christopher Harris State of California (CRB of California) 
12 John McClow 12/19/13 VACANT State of Colorado (CWCB) 
13 Jayne Harkins 12/27/11 Warren Turkett State of Nevada (CRC of Nevada) 
14 Deborah Dixon  11/10/15 Don Ostler State of New Mexico (Interstate Stream Comm.) 
15 Steve Wolff 2/3/2015 Don Ostler State of Wyoming (State Engineer’s Office) 
16 Eric Millis 2/3/2015 Robert King State of Utah (UDWR) 

 
Environmental Groups 

 
17 Larry Stevens 12/4/06 VACANT Grand Canyon Wildlands Council 
18 David Nimkin 12/13/13 Kevin Dahl National Parks Conservation Association 

 
Recreation Interests 

 
19 David Brown  7/14/16 Ben Reeder Grand Canyon River Guides 
20 John Jordan 8/20/14 John Hamill Federation of Fly Fishers/Trout Unlimited 

 
Federal Power Purchase Contractors 

 
21 Ted Rampton 6/27/1997 Clifford Barrett Utah Associated Municipal Power Systems 
22 Leslie James 7/30/1998 Ed Gerak Colorado River Energy Distributor’s Association 

 
Other Stakeholders 

 
23 Lynn Jeka 3/25/13 Brian Sadler DOE - Western Area Power Administration 
24 Jim deVos 4/15/14 Chris Cantrell Arizona Game and Fish Department 
25 VACANT   San Juan Southern Paiute Tribe 

 





To:

United States f)epartment of the Interior
O FI.ICE OT"f 'H Ê S[.-CRE'I ARY

\ùíashington, l)C 20240

,llll B 20i6

MEMORANDUM

Scott VanderKooi,
Chief, TJSGS Grand Canyon Monitoring and Researoh Center (GCMRC)

Katrina GLantz,

Chief, Adaptive Management Group, Reclamation, Upper Cìolorado Region

al Deputy Assistant Secretary for WatcrFronr: Jerurifer
and Science

Subject: Glen anyon Dam Managerncnt Proglam Continuity and Strategic Direction

'I'his memo provides strategic direction to the Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Program
(GCDAMP), consistent with the priorities of the Secretary of the Interior and with the Grand

Canyon Protection Act. I am providing tlris guidance to ensure continuity and continued
successes within thc GCDAMP in anticipation of a ncw Administrntion and a change in
leadership within the Department of the Intcrior (lnterior) in early 2017. Given the central role
of the GCDAMP in meeting our obligations ancl conrmitments untler the laws governing Glen
Canyon Dam operations ancl related activitics, it will be irnportant to maintain workplan
development and inplemenlation, and timely exchanges with the Adaptive Management Work
Ciroup (AMWG) tèderal advisory committee, cluLing these transitions.

-l'his 
memo highlights several issues important to the success of the GCDAMP: (l) a continued

commitment to etfeclive adaptivc managerìrent and cflìciEnt administrative practices through the

triennial workplan and budget process, f.ocusing on high-priority monitoring and science while
retaining the flexibility to adapt to evolving gonditions and science; (2) enhancing Tribal
involveme¡rt and integration with the GCDAMI';(3) integration of the l,ong-Term Experimental
and Management Plan into GCìDAMP processes;ancl (4) further incorporation of input from the

Science Advisors Program.

(1) Triennial workplan and budget process

Over the last sevelal years, the new process developed t'or establishing the GCDAMP's annual

workplan, budget, and hydrograph has allowed the program to increase its tbcus on significant
questions and has streamlined thc budget process, The new process allows for consultation with
basin stakeholders. and suppolts the AMWG's annr¡al lscommendations to the Secretary on dam

opcrations,

T'lre ct¡rrent CCDAMP workplan (FY20l 5-2017) r,vas the first to be developed for a three-year

timespan, The interrt of the triennial workplarr was to improve program effìciency and

effcctiveness by reducing the time and effort sperlt or1 the budget process ancl to allow timc for



The curlent CCDAMP workplan (FY2015-201 7) was the first to be developed for a three-year
timespan. The intent olthe tliennial workplan was to irlprove program efficiency and
effectiveness by reducing the time and effort spent on the budget process and to allow time for
ongoing science fiom the currerlt workplan to progress sufficiently to inform the next workplan.
It was also recognizcd that rnid-course adjuslments might be neecled to accomrnodate new
scientific information or to acljrist to the availability of funding. Although not wìthout its
challenges, I believe the development and implementation of the FY2015-17 GCDAMP
workplan has been a success. Benelìts realized include. as hoped, a more elfioient process f'or

the AMWG and its T'echnical Work Group and Budget Ad Hoc Group, as well as for GCMRC
and its cooperating agenoies and organizations; and more time at AMWG meetings to learn
about issues relevant to the GCDAMP and its role in providing recommendations to the
Secretary.

Building on this first iliemrial workplan, it is important to ensure that in future workplans the

GCDAMP continues to target its limited resources to the highest priority projects, with an

appropriate balance of near- and long-term priorities; while maintaining the flexibility to respond
to changing needs. Specitic adjustments based on this first triennial workplan experience inolude
tusing tnore conservative budget ptojections based on recent performance of the Consumer Price
Index, and idenl.ifying funding lor all work included in the workplan lo avoid shortt'alls. In
addition, under the lirst triennial workplan, mid-course changes were considered and in some
cases implemented f'or several projects. ClaLilying the procedures and justifications to propose

and rnake mid-course changes to projects will help ensure consistency in adapting future
triennial workplans to emerging science end operational considerations,

As you develop the next triennial workplan and budget, I ask that you continue to work with the
AMWG to bring greater efïciency and consistency to the process.

(2) Tribal engagentent

Meaningful involvement and integration of Tribal perspectives into the GCDAMP is critical to
the continued success of the program. ln addition to considering input received from'Iribal
reprcsentalives on the AMWG, the next triennial workplan should also take into consideration
results and recommendations tronr the Science Advi.sors Program, and in panicular from the

Science Advisors Program's evaluation of the GCDAMP cultural program. To that end,l ask

that the GCDAMP/Scienoc Aclvisors Program explorc ways to co-produce with Tribes a useftll
clefinitiou of what cultural resources lequire attention, and what approaches to evaluation will be

meaningful, This joint effort should ensure that Tribes' input strongly shapes the parameters for
the proposed evaluation of the cultural program, I also ask that you establisli more regular
interactions with lnterior's Joint Tribal Liaison(s). Fully staffing those positions is a priority fbr
the Offrce of the Assistant Secrctary for Water and Sciencc.

(3) L,ong-'l.erm Experirnenlal and Management Ptan (L'I'EMP)

IntegLating the LTEMP into GCDAMI' processes is a clear pLiority fbr the llext tr'iennial
workplan, 'fhe ongoiug I-'Ì'EMP process builds on tlte soiencc ancl learning that has occurrecl

ovcr the last 20 years and proposes an updated long-term plan lbr experimentation, monitoring



and science on the ecosystems downstlean from Glen Canyon Daur to infonn dam operations

and other related AMP activities, Accordingly, Interìor, through the Bureau of Reclamation
(Reclamation) and the National Park Service, has worked with interested stakeholders through
the development of the LTEMP environmental impact statement (EIS). The draft EIS was

released in .Ianuary 2016 and the final EIS and subsequent Record of Decision (ROD) are

anticipated in late 2016. We anticipate that irnplementation of the LTEMP ROD will provide a

framework for adaptively managing Glen Canyon Dam and downstream resources over the next
20 years. The prefened altemative identifìed in the draft LTEMP EIS contemplates a timeline
for experimental actions, and a science plan to ideutify research and monitoring needed to
support implementation. While much of this resea¡ch zurd monitoring is ongoing and is

incorpolated in the current triennial workplan and budget, the next pluse of planning must be

responsive to the anticipated final decision.

Past direction from the Secretary's Designee to the GCMRC identified fr-rur high-level priorities
fbr long-terni monitoring and science focused on native fish, sedirnent resources, non-native fish
control and recreational fishing, and cultural resources and Traditional Ecological Knowledge. I
continue to believe that these priorities shoulcl guide future planning, with minor modification as

follows:

¡ Science in support of Endangered Species Act cornpliance with an emphasis on

humpback chub, razorback sucker, and other native fìsh as wcll as the resources that

support them throughout the Colorado River Ecosystem.

o Science in sr.rpport of compliance with the Grand Canyon Protection Act, in particular
sediment resources,

o Science relating cultural and archaeological sites to modern river processes, as well as the

role of traditional knowledges in contributing to scientilÌc understanding and river
operations.

r Science on non-native fish (population dynamics, contlol meastrres, and the recreational

trout fishery) and potentially invasive ac¡uatic species.

These priorities provide focus, but do not preclude other scientific investigation where such

investigation has widespread support and tirrthers the purposes of the GCDAMP.

Our understanding of these issues and the interactions a¡nong them ha-s continued to evolve, and

these issues have been rigorously analyzed in the drall LTEMP EIS. These topics should

continue to bc evaluated, in particular to support soience and mclnitoring frlr LTEMP and with
the overlay of changing climate, declining reseryoir levels, and the threat of invasive non-native

species. The GCMRC has deve.loped an initial high-level science plan in suppofl of the LTEMP,
The next GCDAMP workplan needs to provide the details required for implementation of the

new ROD. It should also identify the means to collect, analyze, and report inf'ormation required
to supporl decision-making by Interiol leadership and agency resource maragers,

(4) Science Advisors Program

In 201 5, administration of the GCDAMP Science Advisors Program was transfèrred liom
GCMRC to Reclamation and the Science Advisors Program is now gaining momentum. The



Science Advisors Program provides independent, external review of GCDAMP activities in
orcler to provide recommendations to the AMWG and the GCMRC regarding monitoring.
priorities, integration, ancl management of natural, cultural, and recreational resources affected

by Glen Canyon Dam operations. The Science Advisols Prograrn's role is purely advisory; the

AMWG reviews all products of the Science Advisors Progratn,

For the Science Advisors Proglam overall, I ask that you maintain a broad definition of "science

advisols" as subject matter experts in all of the major relevant topics, including not only natural

sciences and engineering but also socioeconomic expertise and traditional knowledges. I leave it
to the Science Advisors Executive Coordinator to make the tìnal determination of what expertise

is required fot each review undertaken by the Science Advisors Ptogram.

Over the next years, priolities lor the Science Advisors Program should include reviewing the

GCDAMP cultural resources program and working with T'ribal members to identify how Tribal
perspectives and traditional knowledges can be better integlated into the GCDAMP. The

Science Advisors Plogram should also identify GCDAMP knowledge gaps to help guide the

development of the next triennial budget and workplan, and help organize and implement
protocol evaluation panels with GCMRC as needed.

In closing, I greatly appreciate what Reclamation, GCMRC, your sistel lnterior bureaus, your
paftners, and your external advisors through the AMWG have accomplished in implementing the

first triennial workplan, and in further developing the AMWG as a forthright and collegial
commnnity. I urge the GCDAMP to continue in your eff-orts, and in maintaining communication
with the AMWG on workplan development and implernentation during the upcoming leadership

transitions.

I am confident that your fbllow-through in the areas described above will continue to strengthen

and make the Adaptive Management Program more efficient, efTective, and responsive.



Glen Canyon Dam

Adaptive Management Work Group

GROUND RULES

. Arrive on time.

2. Commit to full participation.

3. Do homework before class begins.

Wait to be recognized before s eaking.

Show respect for others

Be concise.

Stick to the topic.

Save new business for the appointed time.

4

5

6

7

I

I

10. Help keep the meeting on schedule.





I

.,

U.S. Department of the Interior

Glen C¿nyon Dam Adaptive Management lVork Group

CHARTER

Committee's Official Desígnation, GIen Canyon Dam Âclaptive lvlanagement Work Group
(AìvlWC).

Authority. 'Ihe Crand Canyon Protection Act iAct) of Ocrober 30, f 992, Public Law
102-575. Sections 1802, 1804, and 1805; Federal Aclvisory Commirtee Act, as amencled,

5 IJ.S.C. r\ppendix 2.

Objectives and Scope of Activities. The Glen Canyon Dam z\dnptive ù[anagement
Program (AMP) provides for monitoring the results of the operating criteria and plans
irdopted by the Secretary of the lnterior (Secretary), and fbr research and studies to suggest
appropriate changes to those ¡rlans and operating criteria.

The AMP includes the AIvIWC. The ANIWG will provide acfvice and recornmendations to
the Secretary relative to the operation of Glen Can-von Dam. 'i'he Secretary's Designee is

the ¡\ssistant Secretary for Water and Science rvho rvill serl'e as the Chair and the
Designated Federal Officer (DFO) to the Alvl.WG. "fhe ¡\MWG will recommend suitable
monitoring and research pro$ams and make recommendations to the Secretary. The
¡\\,tWG may recommend research and tnonitoring proposals outside the ¡\ct which
complement the AMP process, but such proposals will be fìrnded separately, and shall not
deter hom the fbcus of the Act.

lJnder Section lfl02(a) of the Act, "[t]he Secretary shall operate Glen Canyon Dam in
accorclance with the additional criterìa ancl operating plans specitìed in Section 1804 fofìthe
;\ctj and exercise other authorjties untler existing law in such a rnanner as to protect,
mitigate adverse impacts to, and improve the values for rvhich Grantl Canyon National Park
¿nd Clen Canyon National Recreation Area rvere established, including but not limited to,
natu¡al and cultural resources andvisitornse." IJnder Section 1802(b) ofthe Act, "[t]he
Secretary shall implernent this section [of the Act] in a manner I'ully consistent rvith and
subject to the Colorado River Compact, the Upper Colorado Rivcr Basin Cornpact, the
Water Treaty of ì 944 with Ìvtexico. the decree of the l-upreme Court in Arizona v.
California, antl the provisions of the Colorado River Storage Project Act of 1956 ancl the
Colorado River Basin Project Act of t968 that govern allocation, appropriation,
developrnent, and exportation of the rilaters of the Colorado River basin.''

J. Description of Duties. The duties or roies and ftrnctions of tlte AñIWG are in an advisorv
capacity only. 'Ihev ¿ìre to:

tistablish AVIWO operating procedures.

Advise the Secretary in rneeting environmentaland cultu¡al commitments
includíng those confained in the Glen Canyon Dam Environmental Impact
Statement Record of Decision (CCDEIS ROD) ancl subsequenr related
decisiol'rs.

3.

il,

b.



Recommend the framervork t'or the AIvIP policy, goals- and tlfuection.

Recommend resource management objectives t'or development and
irnplemerrtation of a long-term monitoring plan, and any necessary research

md studies required to determine ¡he etTèct olthe operation oI Glen Canyon
Dam on the values tbr rvhich Grand Canyon National Park a¡r<l Glen Canyon
N¿rticlnal Rccreation ¡\rea r.vere established. including but not Iimited to,

natural and cultrrral resources, a¡d visitor use.

È, Revierv and provide input on the report identitied in Section 1804(c)(2) ot the

Act to the Secretary, the Congress, and the Governors of the Colorado lìiver
Basin States. This annual report includes discussion on dam operations, the

operation of the AMP, status of resoutces, and measures taken to protect,
rnitigate, and improve the resources detined irr the Act.

Annually review long-term moniloring data to provide advice on the status of
Íesources and whethcr the Desired Future Conditions and RMP Strategic
Plan goal.s and objectives are being met.

lv{onitor and report on all program activities undel'taken to comply with
app I icab le I arvs, i ncl udin g permittin g requirem ents.

,\gency or Official to lilhom the Committee lìeports. The AMWG repofts to the
Secretary through the Secretary's Designee.

Supporf. The logistical ærd support services tbr the meetings of the AMWG will be
provided by the Brueau of Reclamation.

Estimated ¡\nnual Operating Costs ¡nd Staff Years. The estimated annual operating
costs associated with supportìng the ¿\Nf WG's functions are 5600,000, including all direct
¿ur<l indirect expenses. it is es¡imated that {ive FTE's rvill be required to support the
AÌvIWG.

Designated F'ecleral Officer. Tl.e DFO is the Assistant Secretary tbr Water and Science
r.r,ho is a l'ull-time Federal employee appointed in accordance with Agency procedures. The
DFO or designee will approve or call all ¿\MWG ond subcommittee meetings, prepare and
approve all meeting agendas, attend all AMWG and subcomrnìttee meetings, adjoum any
rneetings r.vhen the DFO determines adjoumment to be in the public interest and chair
meetings when directed to do so by the Secretary. The DFO will tàcilitate inptrt and
coordinatiorr of intbrmation tiom the AMWG to the Secretary to ensule that advice and
recommendations are communicated in accordance r,vith FAC¡\. This will be accomplishecl
by a memorandum annu'ally or morë often. if appropriate, from the DFO and the Secretary.

Estimaterl Number and Frequency of ùleetings, 'the ¡\lvIWG is expected to meet
approximatcly twice a year, and at such other times as designated by the DFO.

c,

d.

t,

rt

f,.

/a

7

8.

9.

2

10. Duration. Continuing.



11.

12

Termination, The AVÍ\\¡G will te¡minate 2 years from the date the charter is frlecl, unless

prior to that date, it is renerved in accordance with the provisions of Section l4 of the

FACA. The Ar\tWG lvill not meet or take any action rvithout a valid current charter.

Membership and Designation. Menrbem and alternate members of the ¡\MWG appointed

by the Secretary 
"vill 

be comprised ot. but not limited to, the f'ollowing:

a. Secretary's l)esignee, rvho will serve as Chairperson tbr the ¡\MWG.

tr. One representative each from the follorving entities:

( I ) The Secretary of Energy (Western ¿\rea Powe¡ Administrarion)
(2) Arizona Game and Fish l)epartment
(3) tlopi lribe
(4) Ihralapai Tdbe
(5) Navajo Nation
(6) San Juan Southem Paiute Tribe
(7) Southem Paiute Consortium
(8) Pueblo of Zu¡i

c. One representative each ùom the Governors flom the seven basin States:

( I ) ¡\rizona
(2) Calitbrnia
(3) Colorado
t4) Nevada
(5) Nerv Mexico
(6) Utah
(7) Wyoming

d. Representatives each from the general public as follorvs:

(l) Trvo tiom environmental organizations
(2) Trto liom the recreation indus
(3) Tuo fiom contractors who purchase Federal power tiom Glen Canyon

Porverplant

e. One rcpresentative from each of the t'ollowing DOI agencies as ex-olficio non-
voting members: i

(1) Bureau of Reclarnation
(2) Bureau of Indian Atl'airs
(3) U.S. Fish and Wildtil"e Service
(-t) National Park Service

Members rvill be appointed to the AMWG by the Secretary. with input and
recom¡nendations lrom the above-retèrenccd agencies, States, tribes, contractors tbr Federal
povver tiom (ilen Canyon I)am, environmental organizations, and other stakeholders.

3



13.

1.t.

15.

Each member may also recommend an alternate member for appointment by the Secretary.
ìvfembers and alternates of rhe AMWG rvill be appoirrted for a 4-year term

ñ{embers <¡f the Alvf WG serve without compensation, except that the DFO. in his or her sole
discretion, may choose to allow compensätion tbr the 'feclmical Work Group subcommittee
chaìrperson according to applicable authorities. While away from their homes or regular
places of business, members engaged in AMWG or subcommittee business approved by the
l)FO may be allorved travel expenses. including per diem in Iieu of subsistence, in the same
manner as persons employed intermittently in Covemment service under Section 5703 of
Title 5 of the United States Code.

A vacancy on the AfvlV/G will be tìtled in the same nìanner in rvhich the original
¿rppointment rvas made.

Ethics Responsibility. No AlvlWG member, altemate member, or subcommittee member

''vill participate in any specific party matter including a lease, license, permit, contract.
claim, ¿¡greement, or related litigation rvith the Department in rvhich the member has a direct
tìnancial interest.

Subcommittees. Subject to the DFO's approval, subcommittees rnay be f'ormed t'or the
purpose of compiling information or conducting research. However, such subcommìttees
rrrust act only under the direction of the DFO and must repon their recommendations to the
tull ¿\lt4WG f,or consideration. 'fhe A¡/[WC Chair rvill appoint subcommittee members.
Subcommittees must not provide advice or work products directly to the Agency.
Subcommittees will meet as necessary to accomplish their assignments, subject to
the approval of the DFO anrl the availability of resources.

Recordkeeping. The recorrls of the ¡\lvlWG, a¡rd formally ¿¡nd intbnnally established
subcommittees of the AMWG, shall be handled in accorda¡ce with General Records
Schedule 26, Item 2 and other approved Agency records disposition schedule. These
recorcts .shall be avaìlable lor public inspection and copying, subject to the Freedorn of
Infbrmation Act. 5 IJ.S.C- 552.

AUG 2 4 2015

Secretary of Intcrior Datu- Signed

AUo 2 4 20,15

Date Filed

4



February 9,2011

GLEN CANYON DAM
ADAPTIVE MANAGEMENT WORK GROUP

OPERATING PROCEDURES

FOREWARD

The Grand Canyon Protection Act (Act) of October 30, 1992, (Public Law 102-575) directs the
Secretary of the Interior (Secretary) to "establish and implement long-term monitoring programs
and activities that will ensure that Glen Canyon Dam is operated in a manner consistent with that
of section 1802" of the Act. "The monitoring programs and activities shall be established and
implemented in consultation with the Secretary of Energy; the Govemors of the States of
Arizona, California, Colorado, Nevada, New Mexico, Utah, and Wyoming; Indian tribes; and the
general public, including representatives of academic and scientific communities, environmental
organizations, the recreation industry, and contractors for the purchase of Federal power
produced at Glen Canyon Dam." In order to comply with the consultation requirement of the
Act, the Glen Canyon Dam EIS recommended formation of a Federal Advisory Committee. To
fulfill this recommendation, the Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Work Group
(AMWG) was established. The AMWG Charter imposes the following criteria: (1) the AMWG
shall operate under the Federal Advisory Committee Act (Public Law 92-463); (2) the
Chairperson shall be designated by the Secretary; (3) the Secretary's Designee, shall also serve
as the Designated Federal Official under the Federal Advisory Committee Act; (4) the Bureau of
Reclamation will provide the necessary support in taking accurate minutes of each meeting; and
(5) the AMWG shall continue in operation until terminated or renewed by the Secretary of the
Interior under the Federal Advisory Committee Act.

OPERATION

1 Meetines. The AMWG is expected to meet semiannually. The Secretary's Designee may
call additional meetings as deemed appropriate. A minimum of one meeting will be held
annually. All meetings shall be announced by notice in the Federal Register and by news release
to local newspapers.

Thirteen members must be present (either in person or on the telephone) at any meeting of the
AMWG to constitute a quorum.

Robert's Rules of Order will be generally followed, except some flexibility will be allowed as

needs dictate.

The Bureau of Reclamation is responsible for arranging meetings and for other duties associated
with operation of the AMWG. They will arrange for meeting location, provide staff for the
Designee, prepare minutes and Federal Register Notices, and other operational requirements of
the AMWG.

I



Meetings of the AMWG will generally be held in Phoenix, Arizona, to allow for better travel
accessibility for the members as well as provide greater opportunity for the public to attend.
However, the Secretary's Designee may decide upon a different location as he/she deems
appropriate.

The AMWG may make recommendations to the Secretary of the Interior in response to future
legislation or appropriations that may affect or impact the Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive
Management Program. This may be accomplished when an AMWG member requests to the
Chair, an issue to be addressed either at a regular meeting of the AMWG, at a special meeting or
during a conference call. AMWG members will discuss the issue and if appropriate, make
recommendations on the issue to the Secretary of the Interior in a timely manner. When any
other potentially controversial topics are identified by any AMWG member, they should notify
the Chair so that this procedure can be implemented.

2. Chairperson. The Chairperson will be the Secretary's Designee, who will preside over the
meetings of the AMWG. In the absence of the Chairperson, a senior level Interior representative
will act as Chairperson for the AMWG. The Chairperson or designated alternate must be present
before a meeting of the AMWG may convene. The Chairperson or his/her alternate is authorized
to adjoum an AMWG meeting at any time.

The Secretary's Designee will also be responsible for sending a formal summary report after
each Advisory Committee meeting directly to the Secretary of the Interior with copies of subject
summary report to be provided to all AMWG members.

3. Members. Membership shall follow the guidelines in the AMWG Charter. Members of the
AMWG will be designated by the Secretary of the Interior. They shall serve for a term of four
years. Members may be re-designated to serve for more than one term.

4. Alternate Committee Members. Each AMWG member may designate an alternate to serve
for the same term as the member. Alternates must be identified to the Chairperson in writing.
Altemates must meet the same qualifications as the member. Alternates will have authority to
participate in AMWG business, including quorum and voting privileges. A list of members and
alternates shall be maintained and made available to AMWG members.

5. Aeenda. At least 30 days prior to any meeting of the AMWG, a draft of the proposed agenda
and related information will be sent to the group members. Members shall review the agenda
and retum comments and proposed agenda items to the Designee within two weeks of the agenda
mailing date. The frnal agenda will be sent to the members l5 days prior to the meeting. The
Secretary's Designee shall approve the agendas.

6. Voting. The maker of a motion must clearly and concisely state and explain his or her
motion. Motions may be made verbally or submitted in writing in advance of the meeting.
Notice of motions to be made by any member of the AMWG should be announced in the Federal
Register and presented on the agenda. Any motions proposed by any member in meetings must

2



February 9,2011

be related to an agenda topic, and will be considered only if a simple majority of members
present agree to hear it. After a motion there should be presentations by staff followed by a
discussion and a call for questions. The public will be given opportunity to comment during the
question period as allowed by the Chairperson. Any member of the public who has asked to
address the AMWG, shall have a minimum of two minutes to comment. The Chairperson can
limit the total time allowed to the public for comments. Comments shall address the motion and
not be repetitive to presentations, group discussions or other comments previously presented.
The motion must be fully documented for the minutes and restated clearly by the Chairperson
before a vote is taken.

The group should attempt to seek consensus but, in the event that consensus is not possible, a

vote should be taken. Voting shall be by verbal indication or by raised hand. Approval of a
motion requires a 60 percent majority of members present and voting. The views of any
dissenting member or minority group shall be briefly incorporated into the information
transmitted to the Secretary along with the majority recommendation. In addition, at his/her
discretion, the Secretary's Designee may ask any individual at the meeting for the rationale
related to their vote. Voting shall occur only with the formal meetings of the group.

7. Minutes. Detailed minutes of each meeting will be kept. The minutes will contain a record of
persons present and a description of pertinent matters discussed, conclusions reached, and
actions taken on motions. Minutes shall be limited to approximately 5-15 pages. The
corrections and adoption of the minutes will be by vote of the AMWG at the next subsequent
meeting. The Secretary's Designee shall approve all minutes. The Bureau of Reclamation is
responsible for recording and disseminating minutes to AMWG members, generally within two
weeks of the subject meeting, but in no event longer than 30 days.

9. Public Involvement. No later than 15 days prior to each meeting of the AMWG , a notice will
be published in the Federal Register. Meetings will be open to the public and advertised in local
newspapers. Interested persons may appear in person, or file written statements to the AMWG.
Public comments can be on any issue related to operation of the Glen Canyon Dam. A specific
time for public comment will be identifïed in the agenda. Advance approval for oral
participation may be prescribed, and speaking time may be limited. Minutes of the AMWG
meetings and copies of reports submitted to the AMWG will be maintained for public review at

the Bureau of Reclamation's Upper Colorado Regional Ofhce in Salt Lake City, Utah, and at the
Library of Congress in Washington, D.C. They will also be posted to the Bureau of Reclamation
web site (www.uc.usbr. gov/amp).

10. Payment of Travel. While engaged in the perforrnance of official business at AMWG and
AMWG sub-group meetings (regular, ad hoc, and Protocol Evaluation Panel meetings) away
from home or their regular places of business, all AMWG members or AMWG sub-group
members shall, upon request, be reimbursed for travel expenses in accordance with current
Federal Travel Regulations. Alternates representing the ofhcial committee member may also
receive compensation for travel expenses.

aJ



I l. Open/Closed Meetines. If any member proposes discussion of a sensitive issue felt to
require a closed session, he or she should so state in a proposal submitted to AMWG members in
sufhcient time to include it in the agenda published in the Federal Register Notice announcing
the next meeting. A closed executive session may be held during a regular meeting, but should
be used rarely. Any sensitive cultural issues will require consultation with Native Americans
prior to meeting.

Telephone conference meetings must have a notice in the Federal Register l5 days prior to the
call. There must be adequate opportunity for the general public to listen to the conference call.

The AMWG may conduct business outside of formal meetings through telephone polls
conducted by the Chairperson or hisÆrer designee. In emergency situations, telephone polls can
be requested by the AMWG member to act on clearly defined written motions for AMWG
approval. Following approval by the Chairperson, a telephone poll will be conducted within
seven working days. During a telephone poll, all members will be contacted and requested to
vote. Approval of a motion requires 60 percent majority of all members voting. The
Chairperson is responsible for documenting in writing how each member voted and distributing
the record to all AMWG members.

12. Reports and Record Keepins. The Annual Report (AR) required by the Grand Canyon
Protection Act shall be reviewed by the AMWG. The State of the Natural and Cultural
Resources in the Colorado River Ecosystem report developed by the Grand Canyon Monitoring
and Research Center will be attached to the AR and shall contain information on the condition of
the resources impacted by the operation of Glen Canyon Dam. The AR shall be concise,
containing critical resource issues and recommendations to the Secretary on future dam
operations.

Bureau of Reclamation staff will supply GSA the required inf-ormation to complete the summary
report for Federal Advisory Committees.

13. Committee Expenses and Cost Accounting. An accounting of the expenses for operation of
the AMWG shall be maintained by Reclamation. Expenses and other information will be
submitted to GSA as required by FACA. Committee expenses are limited to approximately
$500,000 annually.

SUB-GROUPS

1. Formation. The AMWG may form sub-groups in order to facilitate the mission of the
AMWG as identif,red in the Act and the AMWG Charter. Sub-groups will be formed for
completion of specific tasks or for specified periods of time. Sub-group members will be named
by the members of the AMWG for their own organization, or by the Secretary's Designee.
Effort shall be made to keep sub-groups small. Sub-groups will be formed or dissolved by a vote
of the AMWG.

4



February 9,2011

2. Requirements. Sub-groups may choose their chairperson from among the AMWG named
sub-group members, The chairperson of any zub-group may convene group meetings at his or
her discretion. Sub-groups may develop their own operating procedures. One standing sub-
group of tbe AIWMG wjll belhe GIen Canyon Dam Technical Work Group (TWG). The TV/G
membership shall consist of one representative from each organizationrepresented in the
AMWG, with the exception that two members from the Nationat Park Service representing the
Grand Canyon National Park and the Glen Canyon Recreational Area, and one representative
from the US Geological Survey. All sub-groups will elect their own officers. Names of all sub-
group members will be announced to the AMWG at regular meetings and will be attached to the
minutes, Sub-group mernbers may designate alternates.

3. Cha¡ge. Sub-groups will receive their charges frorn the AMWG. Sub-groups will work only
on issues assigned thern by the AMWG, They will not be empowered to follow other issues on
their own, They are encouraged to subrnit issues to the AMWG they feel worthy of
consideration and discussion, but the AMWG must approve work on all new issues. The
AMWG may require the sub-groups to develop plans and direct them to come to a consensus or
rnajority opinion at their discretion. Sub-groups shall determine their own operating procedures,
which must be reduced to writing and included with the AMV/G and sub-group records.

4. Reporting. Sub-groups will report at least annually to the AMIù/G at the request of the
Chairperson. Sub-groups shall report only to the AMWG. They shall provide information as
necessary for preparing annual resource reports and other reports as required for the AMWG.

5, Ad Hoc Groups. Ad hoc groups may be creatsdby the Seoretary's Designee or as a
subcomponent of a sub-group. These gfoups may meet to discuss assignnents from the AMWG
or sub-gtoup. Ad hoc meetings will not require Federal Register notices. Minutes are
recomrnended but not required. Ad hoc groups shall report to the AMWG or the n:ain body of
the sub-group, depending upon which gives the assignrnent.

Adopted by vote of the AMWG on February 9,2011, in Phoenix, Arizona.

Approved lt
Chairperson

5




	Structure Bookmarks
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure

	Action_Items.pdf
	Action Item Tracking Report
	Action Item
	Open


	Blank Page

